
 

AGENDA |REGULAR TOWN 

COUNCIL MEETING 
Tu es d ay ,  M ay 19 ,  202 0  a t  6 :00  PM  

Counc i l  C ha mb er  at  Ap e x  To wn H a l l ,  73  Hu nte r  S t ree t  

       
 Coun c i l  an d  Admin i s t r a t i on   

       

M a y o r :  J a c q u e s  K .  G i l be r t  |  M a y o r  P r o  T e m :  N i c o l e  L .  D o z i e r  

C o u n c i l  M e m b e r s :  B r e t t  D .  G a n t ;  Au d r a  M .  K i l l i ng sw o r th ;  C h e r y l  F .  S ta l l i n g s ;  T e r r y  M a h a f f e y  

T ow n  M a n a g e r :  D r e w  Hav e n s  |  As s i s ta n t  T o w n  M a n a g e r s :  S h a w n  P u r v i s  a n d  M a r ty  S t o n e  

T ow n  C l e r k :  D o n n a  B .  H o s c h ,  M M C  |  T ow n  At to r n e y :  L a u r i e  L .  H o h e  

 

COM ME N CE ME N T  

Ca l l  to  Or der   |   I nvo c at i o n   |   P l ed ge  o f  Al l e g i anc e  

PR E S E N T AT I O N S  

PR1 Mayor Pro Tem Nicole Dozier 

Presentation of Proclamation declaring Asian American Pacific Islander Heritage Month 

CO N SE N T  AG E N D A 

A l l  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a  i t e m s  a r e  c o n s i d e r e d  r o u t i n e ,  t o  b e  e n a c t e d  b y  o n e  m o t i o n  w i t h  t h e  a d o p t i o n  o f  

t h e  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a ,  a n d  w i t h o u t  d i s c u s s i o n .  I f  a  C o u n c i l  M e m b e r  r e q u e s t s  d i s c u s s i o n  o f  a n  i t e m ,  t h e  

i t e m  m a y  b e  r e m o v e d  f r o m  t h e  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a  a n d  c o n s i d e r e d  s e p a r a t e l y .  T h e  M a y o r  w i l l  p r e s e n t  t h e  

C o n s e n t  A g e n d a  t o  b e  s e t  p r i o r  t o  t a k i n g  a c t i o n  o n  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  i t e m s  

CN1 Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Motion to approve Minutes of the April 23, 2020 Budget Workshop, the April 27, 2020 Special Meeting, and 

the May 5, 2020 Regular Meeting 

CN2 Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Motion to approve the sell-back of cemetery plots to the Town from Mr. and Mrs. Dalton in the amount of 

$1,200.00 

CN3 Steve Adams, Real Estate and Public Utilities Specialist 

Motion to approve contract between the Town and Jordan Oil company to trade portions of property as 

related to the construction of the Apex Senior Center 

CN4 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Motion to approve the Statement of the Apex Town Council pursuant to G.S. 160A-383 addressing action 

on the various Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments of May 5, 2020. 

CN5 Russell H. Dalton, PE, Senior Transportation Engineer 



Motion to approve an Ordinance amending Section 20-164 with the addition of subsection (37) to enforce 

a No Parking restriction along both sides of both directions of Great Lawn Road and along both sides of 

Sunflower Road.  

CN6 Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney 

Motion to repeal the Remote Participation Policy for Meetings of the Apex Town Council adopted on March 

17, 2020.  

CN7 Drew Havens, Town Manager 

Motion to approve amending the current Apex Farmers Market Special Event Permit to allow for drive-thru 

pickup along Seaboard Street on Saturday, May 16, 23, and 30, and June 6, 13, 20, and 27, and Friday, July 

3, to close marked parking spaces along the east side of Seaboard Street from 8:00 a.m. until 1:00 p.m. these 

days. 

CN8 Jenna Shouse, Long Range Planner 

Motion to temporarily dedicate and mark eight existing on-street parking spaces along Hunter Street to serve 

as a bus layover location for GoApex Route 1 beginning in March 2021. 

R E G U L AR  M E E T I N G  A G E N D A  

M a y o r  G i l b e r t  w i l l  c a l l  f o r  a d d i t i o n a l  A g e n d a  i t e m s  f r o m  C o u n c i l  o r  S t a f f  a n d  s e t  t h e   

R e g u l a r  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a  p r i o r  t o  C o u n c i l  a c t i o n s .  

P U B L I C  F O R U M  

P u b l i c  F o r u m  a l l o w s  t h e  p u b l i c  a n  o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  a d d r e s s  t h e  T o w n  C o u n c i l .   T h e  s p e a k e r  i s   

r e q u e s t e d  n o t  t o  a d d r e s s  i t e m s  t h a t  a p p e a r  a s  P u b l i c  H e a r i n g s  s c h e d u l e d  o n  t h e  R e g u l a r  A g e n d a .    

T h e  M a y o r  w i l l  r e c o g n i z e  t h o s e  w h o  w o u l d  l i k e  t o  s p e a k  a t  t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e  t i m e .   L a r g e   

g r o u p s  a r e  a s k e d  t o  s e l e c t  a  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  t o  s p e a k  f o r  t h e  e n t i r e  g r o u p .    

C o m m e n t s  m u s t  b e  l i m i t e d  t o  3  m i n u t e s  t o  a l l o w  o t h e r s  t h e  o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  s p e a k .  

P U B L I C  H E AR I N G S  

PH1 Dianne Khin, Director 

Public Hearing and possible motion to adopt an Ordinance on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town 

Council’s intent to annex 1800 N Salem, LLC property containing 1.97 acres located at 1800 N Salem Street, 

Annexation #688 into the Town’s corporate limits. 

PH2 Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

Public hearing and possible motion regarding an amendment to the Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Equestrian Plan 

map of the Comprehensive Transportation Plan; the Bike Network map of the Comprehensive Bicycle Plan; 

and the Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and Open Space Master Plan map.  

PH3 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Public Hearing and possible motion regarding various amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance. 

PH4 Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 

Public hearing and possible motion to approve an Order Closing a portion of the right-of-way (ROW), located 

between two Sweetwater Property Owner Association Open Space tracts 

PH5 Jenna Shouse, Long Range Planner 



Public hearing and possible motion regarding associated amendments to the Transit Plan Map of the 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan.  

PH6 Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 

Public Hearing to receive citizen input on the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annual Budget including proposed 

economic development expenditures 

O L D  B U S I N E S S  

OB1 Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 

Receive information regarding Executive Order 124 and the Town’s suspension of utility late fees and 

disconnects, including the Town’s proposed payment plan agreement.  

U N F I N I S H E D  B U S I N E S S  

N E W B U S I N E S S  

C L O S E D  S E S S I O N  

W O R K  S E S S I O N  

AD J O U R N M E N T  

  



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: PRESENTATION 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Mayor Pro Tem Nicole Dozier 

Department(s): Governing Body 

  

Requested Motion 

Presentation of Proclamation declaring Asian American Pacific Islander Heritage Month 

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

 

Item Details 

N/A 

 

Attachments 

 Proclamation 



	
	
	
	

 

PROCLAMATION 
                   From the Office of the Mayor 

 
 

Asian American Pacific Islander Heritage Month 
 

Whereas, in 1977, United States Representatives Frank Horton (New York), and Norman Y. 

Mineta (California), introduced a Resolution to proclaim the first ten days of May as Asian-Pacific 

Heritage Week that President Jimmy Carter signed into law in 1978; and 

Whereas, in 1990, President George H.W. Bush signed a bill passed by the United States 

Congress to extend the week-long celebration to a month; and in 1992, the official designation of 

May as Asian-Pacific American Heritage Month became law; and 

Whereas, North Carolina has been home to members of the Asian American Pacific Islander 

community since the mid-nineteenth century, when the first Chinese immigrants began to settle in 

our state; and 

Whereas, the Raleigh and Charlotte areas are home to the largest communities of Asian 

American Pacific Islanders in North Carolina; and 

Whereas, while Asian American Pacific Islander communities are diverse, throughout history 

the communities have had diverse experiences relative to opportunity, inequity, and adversity; and 

Whereas, during national celebrations, the story of inventor, An Wang, PhD is often shared as 

his helping shape the technology revolution, holding forty patents, and founding Wang Laboratories, 

later selling his core memory patent to IBM; and 

Whereas, there were also less talked about stories like that of attorney Patsy Takemoto Mink, 

the first woman of color elected to US Congress in 1964, championing gender equity by being one 

of the principal authors and cosponsors of Title IX legislation later named, Patsy T. Mink Gender 

Equity in Education Act, and being well known for encouraging gender equity and prohibiting 

discrimination and sexual harassment in educational settings; and  

Whereas, industrial draftsman Vincent Chin was killed on the eve of his wedding, his death 

being a turning point for civil rights engagement of Asian American Pacific Islanders; and 

Whereas, the efforts, resilience, and contributions of Asian American Pacific Islanders can be 

seen in every aspect of society, including education, military, politics, health care, economics, and 

science, playing a pivotal role in AmericaÊs history; and 

Whereas, the Federal Asian Pacific American Council, the Federal Government, and the State 

of North Carolina has proclaimed May as Asian American Pacific Islander Heritage Month; and  

Whereas, the Town of Apex proclaims Asian American Pacific Islander Heritage Month to 

recognize the contributions of Asian Pacific Islander Americans; 

Now, therefore, I, Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor of the Town of Apex, do hereby proclaim May 

2020 as Asian American Pacific Islander Heritage Month in the Town of Apex and encourage all Apex 

residents to learn more about those of Asian American, Native Hawaiian, and Pacific Islander heritage, 

moving us closer to a beloved community.   

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and  

caused the Seal of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 

to be affixed this the 19th day of May 2020 

  

________________________________________________ 

         Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

  



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Administration 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Minutes of the April 23, 2020 Budget Workshop, the April 27, 2020 Special Meeting, and 

the May 5, 2020 Regular Meeting 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

N/A 

 

Attachments 

 Minutes of the April 23, 2020 Budget Workshop 

 Minutes of the April 27, 2020 Special Meeting 

 Minutes of the May 5, 2020 Regular Meeting 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 89 

 

 

 

Special Apex Town Council Meeting 
Monday, April 27, 2020 

 

   

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 
Nicole L. Dozier, Mayor Pro Tempore 

Brett D. Gantt, Audra M. Killingsworth, Cheryl F. Stallings, 
and Terry Mahaffey, Council Members 

Drew Havens, Town Manager 
Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 
Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 
Laurie L. Hohe, Town Attorney 

 

 

The Special Meeting of the Apex Town Council 

scheduled Monday, April 27, 2020, at 4:00 p.m. 

was held in the Council Chamber of Apex Town 

Hall, 73 Hunter Street 

 

In attendance were Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Pro Tem Nicole L. Dozier (remotely), and Council 

Members Audra M. Killingsworth, Brett D. Gantt, Cheryl F. Stallings, and Terry Mahaffey (remotely)   

Also in attendance were Town Manager Drew Havens, Assistant Town Manager Shawn Purvis, 

Town Clerk Donna B. Hosch (remotely), and Town Attorney Laurie L. Hohe 

 
COMMENCEMENT 
       
 
 

Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order, read a diversity and inclusion statement as it relates to religion, 

gave the Invocation, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

PUBIC HEARING 
       
 

PH1 Joanna Helms, Economic Development Director 

Appropriation of funds in the amount of $1,000,000 to establish a Small Business Emergency Loan 

Program to assist small businesses in Apex that are experiencing hardships as a result of the COVID-

19 pandemic.  The Town intends to appropriate fund balance in the General Fund to cover the 

aforementioned costs.  The purpose of the proposed loans is to increase the business prospects of 

the Town by assisting small businesses impacted by the pandemic in maintaining their 

employment and business opportunities.   
 

Staff stated the purpose of the Public Hearing.  The loan was intended to be a bridge to help businesses 

get though this emergency.  The loan cap/business would be $50,000/business, the administrator of the 

program being the NC Rural Economic Development Center.  Staff stated it was anticipated that the 

program would open within a day or two, pending finalization of the agreement.   



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 90 

 

 

 

Responding to Council, staff stated the Rural Center acts as administrator for several funding initiatives.  

Golden Leaf had provided funds for the recovery.  The Apex program would be only for Apex Businesses.  

Staff thought the Rural Center might again receive funds which would be available across the state.  If 

some businesses in Apex had not received funding, they could possibly receive those coming in at a later 

date. 
 

Mayor Gilbert declared the Public Hearing open.   
 

Nicholas Blatchford’s comments submitted via online form were read: 
 

“I commend the Town Council for its foresight in establishing this program.  Our local businesses are 

key to keeping Apex the Peak of Good Living and the loans will help them survive this crisis and will 

help maintain the commercial tax base in the future.  So, I support this program, but was interested 

in how it is funded. So here are my questions:  

1. Where did the Council find the $1 million for this program‐‐from the Rainy Day Fund, the operating 
budget, the capital budget?  Did anything have to be deferred to pay for this? 

2. When (and if) the loans are repaid, do those funds go back into the budget where they came from? 
3. Do we have any sense from the businesses that will get these loans how they will use the 

money?  Will it enable them to keep employees on their payroll?   
4. Do we have any sense of how much of a bridge this will be for these businesses, that is, how long it 

will keep them afloat? 
  
Thanks, and keep up the good work!  Mark Blatchford” 

 

Mayor Gilbert declared the Public Hearing closed. 
 

Staff stated when loan payments come in, the funds would go as Council directs.  Unless other specified, 

the funds would go back into General Fund.   
 

Responding to Council, staff stated there were no specific restrictions on how the businesses could use 

the money whether it be for rent, mortgages, utilities, ecommerce, day to day operations, etc.  Council 

asked how this would bridge the needs in Apex, staff responding that this was hard to estimate because 

of the various kinds of businesses.  However, we would estimate funding would last for two months’ 

operating expenses. 
 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion.  Council Member Killingsworth made the motion  

to approve Budget Amendment #14 in the amount of $1,050,000.00;  

Council Member Stallings seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 91 

 

 

 

Mayor Gilbert referenced an article in the Triangle Business Journal which reflected the great work by 

[Economic Development Director] Joanna Helms and her team and the entire staff.   

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
       
 

With there being no further business and without objection from Council, Mayor Gilbert adjourned the 

meeting. 

__________________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

Town Clerk 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 85 

 

 

 

Apex Town Council Budget Workshop 
Thursday, April 23, 2020 

   

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 
Nicole L. Dozier, Mayor Pro Tempore 

Brett D. Gantt, Audra M. Killingsworth, Cheryl F. Stallings, 
and Terry Mahaffey, Council Members 

Drew Havens, Town Manager 
Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 
Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 
Laurie L. Hohe, Town Attorney 

 

 

The Budget Workshop of the Apex Town 

Council scheduled for Thursday, April 23, 2020, 

at 2:30 p.m. was held in the Third Floor Training 

Room, 73 Hunter Street 

 

In attendance were Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Pro Tem Nicole L. Dozier, and Council Members 

Audra M. Killingsworth, Brett D. Gantt, Cheryl F. Stallings, and Terry Mahaffey   

Also in attendance were Town Manager Drew Havens, Assistant Town Managers Shawn Purvis and 

Marty Stone, Town Clerk Donna B. Hosch, Town Attorney Laurie L. Hohe, Budget and Management 

Analyst Amanda Grogan, Human Resources Director Mary Beth Manville, Police Chief John Letteney, 

Fire Chief Keith McGee, Electric Utilities Director Eric Neuman, Parks and Recreation Director  

John Brown, Budget Technician Jessica Hoffman, Economic Development Director Joanna Helms, 

Public Works and Transportation Director Jose Martinez, Water Resources Director Mike Deaton,  

Building and Inspections Director Rudy Baker, Communications Manager Stacie Galloway,  

Finance Director Vance Holloman, and IT Director Erika Sacco 

 

COMMENCEMENT 
       
 

Mayor Gilbert welcomed everyone to the workshop.  He thanked staff for the work that has been done 

on the budget.  He was proud of how things have been kept moving through COVID-19. 

 

Assistant Town Manager Purvis presented the agenda and explained how the meeting would progress.  

He presented the Town’s vision, mission, and strategic goals. 

 

Specific Council Initiatives 

Purvis stated Council initiatives were showing in the budget.  We have already started working on some 

of these.  Work with the school system is ongoing. 

 

 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 86 

 

 

 

Total Budget 

Purvis presented the General, Electric, Water and Sewer, and Minor Fund numbers totaling $150,241,900. 

 

COVID-19 Response and Adjustments 

Purvis showed figures on the economic impact from the current quarter and fiscal year 20/21.  He 

presented an overview of how the impact will be mitigated.  The first few months, we were exceeding 

budget projections.  Purvis hoped we would still end on a positive note at the end of this fiscal year.  The 

first three quarters of the year, we were really strong.  Explained were the challenges and how we’re 

going to be progressing. 

 

As for disaster response, we have a bit of this but nothing to offset any losses.  We may be able to recoup 

a small amount of our expenses.  Responding to Council, Purvis stated our sales tax distribution is based 

on population.  We will get a bigger share of the pie because of our growth.  There has been some talk 

about bankruptcy in municipalities, but this will probably be unlikely in North Carolina. 

 

General Fund Revenue Summary 

Purvis spoke about the $71,642,400 total revenues and the $.38 tax rate which included $2,070,000 from 

Fund Balance.  The tax rate is a bit over revenue neutral.  Ad valorem taxes mitigate against other 

economic impacts. 

 

Purvis went over General Fund revenues by source, motor vehicle and waste collections, property tax 

rates, and other rates for planning and the cemetery.  Council was glad to see increases for commercial 

properties.  Responding to Council, Purvis explained the discount for military persons purchasing cemetery 

plots, Council stating the 20% discount was fair.  Purvis explained tier rates that are in place for commercial 

but not residential.  Council expressed concern about residents being penalized for their specific 

situations, i.e., having a moderate income but being home during the day.  Havens stated this would be 

looked at this structure during the coming year. 

 

Purvis showed the expenditure summary.  There was some conversation about how our sales tax 

compares to other municipalities.  The General Fund is balanced at this point.  General Fund Revenues 

vs. Expenditures were presented.  Each year since 2011, these have been close. 

 

Responding to Council, Purvis answered questions related to the deputy clerk and sustainability positions. 

 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 87 

 

 

 

Purvis stated there would be a one-year hiatus from the standard merit-based compensation plan and 

that there would be a change in healthcare and dental insurance carriers.  He further stated that some 

employees were not earning a living wage.  The Mayor expressed thanks to those who instituted the 7% 

increase in order to get to that living wage.  Havens stated the cost to implement this 7% was close to 

what it would have otherwise been.  Havens explained the decision to change insurance carriers.  Council 

stated she felt it very good to move to CIGNA.   

 

Responding to Council about the impact of OPEB, Purvis stated the recommendation was to cease this 

for employees hired after July 1, 2020, which is something other municipalities are doing.  Right now, this 

is not a high recruiting factor.  Staff stated we can find other ways for employees to plan for their 

retirement.  Further explained was that OPEB was not in any collective bargaining agreements.  The Town 

is looking at what it can do now for employees, such as health savings accounts.  This change would not 

affect any current employees.  Council was interested in any push back once this change is published. 

 

Purvis stated we are not making any swap outs on rolling stock capital.  He showed those items which 

had been backed out of large capital.  He spoke about how and when revenues and expenditures can 

be adjusted.  Purvis stated that improvements to the Eva Perry Library, a Town building, had been taken 

out of the budget at this point.  He explained the County is making improvements and explained how 

they will be reimbursed. 

 

Purvis showed the capital reserves and projects, stating that Council could re-prioritize these if desired.  

He spoke a bit about the Salem Street study, responding to Council question.  Council were disappointed 

about the study being taken out of the budget.  Conversation ensued on possible swap out alternatives, 

i.e., for Richardson Road.  Purvis spoke about the grants which had been applied for and how getting 

them would affect some of the projects. 

 

Purvis presented the Fund Balance and explained what the figures represented.  Speaking about non-

profit support, Purvis cleared up the legality of funding the school.  He explained we don’t have statutory 

authority to fund this.  Council stated she wanted to know more about Jobs for Life.  She had not received 

any further information on them, so she did not recommend funding. 

 

Water Sewer Fund Revenues 

Purvis presented these figures.  Council asked if we expected these revenues to increase, Purvis explaining 

how the process works.  He presented revenue trends, fund rates, and the expenditures summary, which 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 88 

 

 

 

was balanced.  Responding to Council, Purvis spoke about the renovation of Sunset Hills pump station 

that correlates with a high school.    

 

Purvis reviewed the Water Sewer Fund and Electric Fund revenues.  He presented Electric Fund revenue 

trends and the Electric Fund rates to which no changes were proposed.  Electric Fund rates were 

overviewed and summarized.  Purvis showed those items which were removed and decreased.  

Responding to Council, conversation ensued about replacing all the street lights, which would cost about 

$2 million.  There was also conversation about lighting the Tingen Road water tower, even if it were with 

the current system as on the Hunter Street tower, since lighting was taken out of the budget.  Purvis would 

look at making adjustments for this.  Purvis showed the cumulative effect of rate changes on residents. 

 

Council spoke about COVID-19 and its unknown impacts.  She wants us to be in a good starting place 

and in a healthy situation.  Growth and staff have helped with this.  Because of the economic recession, 

we want to be as responsible as possible. 

 

Council expressed appreciation for all the work and the predictions.  She did not want Apex to be 

forgotten in funding just because we’re an affluent town.   

 

Council Members thanked everyone for their work on the budget.  The budget is broadly in line with what 

was talked about at the retreat earlier this year. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
       
 

With there being no further business and without objection from Council, Mayor Gilbert adjourned the 

meeting. 

__________________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

Town Clerk 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 93 

 

 

 

Apex Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, May 5, 2020 

   

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 
Nicole L. Dozier, Mayor Pro Tempore 

Brett D. Gantt, Audra M. Killingsworth, Cheryl F. Stallings, 
and Terry Mahaffey, Council Members 

Drew Havens, Town Manager 
Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 
Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 
Laurie L. Hohe, Town Attorney 

 

 

The Regular Meeting of the Apex Town Council 

scheduled for Tuesday, May 05, 2020, at 6:00 

p.m. was held in the Council Chamber of Apex 

Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street 

 

In attendance were Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Pro Tem Nicole L. Dozier (remotely), and Council 

Members Audra M. Killingsworth, Brett D. Gantt, Cheryl F. Stallings, and Terry Mahaffey   

Also in attendance were Town Manager Drew Havens, Assistant Town Manager Shawn Purvis, 

Town Clerk Donna B. Hosch (remotely), and Town Attorney Laurie L. Hohe 

All attendees participating remotely arrived prior to 6:00 p.m. 

 

COMMENCEMENT 
       
 

Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order, read a statement recognizing diversity in religion, gave the 

Invocation, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

PRESENTATIONS 
       
 

PR1 Chief John Letteney 

Presentation of National Police Week Proclamation 

Mayor Gilbert stated he believed the Apex Police Department to be one of the best in America, and that 

he was proud to have served on the police force and to see what it is today.  Mayor Gilbert read the 

Proclamation, stating it was his honor to sign such. 
 

PR2 Drew Havens, Town Manager 

Proclamation recognizing May 3-9 as Public Service Recognition Week 

Council Member Gantt read the Proclamation, stating it was his honor to do so.  Mayor Gilbert signed the 

Proclamation. 
 

This meeting was additionally conducted by use of simultaneous communication  



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 94 

 

 

 

PR3 Chief John Letteney 

Presentation of National Telecommunicator Week Proclamation 

Council Member Mahaffey read the Proclamation before it being signed by Mayor Gilbert. 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
       

 

CN1 Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Minutes of the April 7, 2020 Special Council Meeting and the April 21, 2020 Regular Council 

Meeting 

CN2 Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Apex Tax Report dated March 4, 2020 

CN3 Mayor Jacques Gilbert and Mayor Pro Tem Nicole Dozier 

Request to the General Assembly for a Charter amendment regarding Clerk appointment 

CN4 Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

Resolution Supporting the Development of the Rail Corridors Referred to as the S-Line and SA-Line 

for the Benefits of Improved Passenger Rail, Improved Freight Movement, Improved Commuting 

Options and Economic Development  

CN5 Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

Resolution of the Apex Town Council to the North Carolina General Assembly supporting rail as an 

integral component of North Carolina’s transportation future 

CN6 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Set the Public Hearing for the May 19, 2020 Town Council meeting regarding various amendments 

to the Unified Development Ordinance as requested by Planning staff 

CN7 Mary Beth Manville, Human Resources Director 

Reclassification of one of the Water Resources Department’s Senior Engineer positions, Grade 28, 

to Environmental Engineering Manager, Grade 29, and Stormwater & Utility Engineering Manager 

position, Grade 31, to Utilities Engineering Manager, Grade 29 

CN8 Dianne Khin, Director of Planning and Community Development 

Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, Certificate of Sufficiency by 

the Town Clerk, and Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing on the Question of Annexation – 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 95 

 

 

 

Apex Town Council’s intent to annex 1800 N Salem, LLC property containing 1.97 acres located 

at 1800 N Salem Street, Annexation #688 into the Town’s corporate limits 

CN9 Adam Stephenson, Engineering Supervisor 

Revisions to the Town Standard Specifications and Details. 

CN10 Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 

Set the Public Hearing concerning the proposed Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget including 

expenditures for Economic Development (pursuant to NCGS 158-7.1), for Tuesday, May 19, 2019 

at 6:00 p.m. at the Apex Town Hall 

CN11 Michael Deaton, Water Resources Director 

Sewer main construction contract to Carolina Civilworks, Inc. and authorization for the Town 

Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the Town 

CN12 Adam Stephenson, Engineering Supervisor 

Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 2020-14 appropriating an additional $5,935 in funds 

for the Laura Duncan Multi Use Path project 

CN13 Marty D. Stone, Assistant Town Manager 

Resolution to authorize Town Manager or his designee to execute Right of Way Encroachment 

Agreements with North Carolina Department of Transportation 

 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  Council Member Stallings  

made the motion; Council Member Gantt seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
       
 

Council Member Mahaffey requested a Closed Session prior to New Business. 

 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion.  Council Member Mahaffey made the motion to adopt  

the Regular Meeting Agenda with the requested modification; Council  

Member Killingsworth seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 96 

 

 

 

PUBLIC FORUM 
       
 

Public comment from Mark Urban submitted via online form was read: 
 

“I want to express concern that Apex Police seem to be poorly used. These brave men and women protect  this 

community and investigate the crimes that happen here, but I'm shocked at the number of times I see them doing 

speed  traps,  especially  on  state  roads  that  are  already  patrolled  by  the  SHP  (64,  55). What  a waste,  and  the 

additional contact during the pandemic just underscores the hazards of this activity. If this is being done because 

of funding needs, then that's just wrong: the Police are our shield, not our piggy bank. I ask the Council to consider 

directing the Chief to re‐prioritize the Officers towards more criminal enforcement. Thank you for your time. [If the 

Council is curious, I haven't gotten a ticket in 15 years]” 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
       

 

PH1 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Various amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance 

Staff oriented Council to the amendments related to composition of the Planning Board.  The Planning 

Board recommended approval but disagreed with the change to the length of terms and the number of 

terms, recommending both remain as they are currently.  Council clarified the reasons the Planning 

Committee unanimously recommended its changes.  Staff stated the terms of the other advisory boards.  

Conversation ensued surrounding all the terms being consistent.   

 

Staff oriented Council to the proposed compensation to boards as authorized by the Town Council in the 

annual budget.  The Planning Board recommended Council approve up to a $50 per meeting 

reimbursement rather than compensation.  Responding to Council, staff stated the amount was as 

suggested by the Planning Board.  Staff also clarified that compensation could cause more paperwork 

for staff.  Council stated he preferred the stiphen-type compensation [reimbursement] and making this a 

straight model.  Council expressed her views on compensation, pointing out the possible paperwork and 

rules that would be involved, several Council Members being in agreement. 

 

Staff oriented Council to the amendments recommended by staff related to uses and standards.  She 

detailed what staff recommended.  A clean up item was also detailed.  Planning Board recommended 

approval of these items. 

 

 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 97 

 

 

 

Mayor Gilbert declared the Public Hearing open.  With no one wishing to speak, Mayor Gilbert declared 

the Public Hearing closed. 

 

Council outlined the items he intially took to the Planning Committee for consideration and thanked 

Council for his assistance with these.  He stated his intentions and reasons for suggesting the changes to 

the Planning Board. 

 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion.  Council Member Mahaffey made the motion to approve the 

request as presented; Council Member Killingsworth seconded the motion. 

 

Council Member Gantt requested an amendment to extend Planning Board terms from four to five,  

to which Council Members Mahaffey and Killingsworth had no objection. 

 

The moiton carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
       
 

There were no Old Business items for consideration. 

 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
       

 

UB1 Vance Holloman, Finance Director 

Resolution Providing for the Sale and Issuance of $1,800,000 General Obligation Parks and 

Recreation Bonds, Series 2020A, the Resolution Providing for the Sale and Issuance of $28,000,000 

General Obligation Parks and Recreation Bonds, Series 2020B and the Resolution Providing for the 

Sale and Issuance of Not to Exceed $3,200,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 

Giving some good news, staff stated that on this day, the Local Government Commission approved the 

issance of $1.8 of our requested bonds.  In addition, Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s Investors Services 

gave the Town a AAA rating for all three of our bond issues, reaffirming our AAA rating.  He stated this 

reflects on the leadership of Council and the Manager and of all depratments.   

 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 98 

 

 

 

Staff detailed the request.  He pointed out the includsion of language to allow the Finance Director to 

shorten the length of the term of the two-thirds bonds as suggested by our financial advisor.  He detailed 

the financial impact of this.   

 

Responding to Council, staff spoke on his thoughts on the current debt market.  He stated he saw good 

improvement and that we will be very successful. 

 

Mayor Gilbert called for a  motion.  Council Member Mahaffey made the motion to  

Approve the request; Council Member Killingsworth seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
       

 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion to go into Closed Session.  Council Member Gantt  

made the motion; Council Member Stallings seconded the motion. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
       
 

NB1 Marty D. Stone, Assistant Town Manager 

Future use of Town properties located at 320 and 322 N. Mason Street and direction on the same 
 

Staff stated these properties are the site of the Old Grocery Boy Junior purchased in 2017 because of its 

proximity to Town campus and the potential for office space in the future.  In 2019, we purchased the 

residential house on the site, which would open up flexibility for us.  The intention was to demolish the 

house when it was purchased.  There are now options to consider: the Old Junior Boy could be renovated 

adding new space, or it could be taken down to start the whole site with a clean slate.  Staff presented 

reasons why keeping the Old Junior Boy may not be a good decision because of its closeness to the road 

and the structural elements of the building.   

 

Raising both structures would allow a new building design that would be in keeping with the Town’s 

architectural standards for the small town overlay district without the need for exceptions.  Once a 

decision was made for the property, staff would move forward with the consultant for a design that would 

be efficient and effective for the citizens. 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 99 

 

 

 

Responding to Council, staff answered questions about the surrounding neighbors being consulted.  Staff 

stated that the zoning for the property has been changed, and we are within our rights to develop for 

office space.  We have had conversations with the owner of the surrounding houses, ensuring her that 

there would be a good buffer between our property and her houses.  Signage will go up, and we can 

mail something out to the HOA and adjacent neighbors informing them of what would be coming.  Staff 

added that being able to start with a blank canvass would allow us easier building of something more 

fitting to the neighborhood.   

 

Mayor Gilbert called for a motion.  Council Member Mahaffey made the motion to move forward on 

these properties with a clean slate, taking down the two existing buildings; Council 

Member Stallings seconded the motion. 

 

Council Member Gantt stated he initially wanted to reuse the building, but it didn’t make sense in this 

case. 

The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

 

Mayor Gilbert wished Mr. Stone Happy Birthday on behalf of the Council! 

 

 

WORK SESSION 
       
 

There were no Work Session items for consideration. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
       
 

With there being no further business and without objection from Council, Mayor Gilbert adjourned the 

meeting. 

__________________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

Town Clerk 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 



Apex Town Council Meeting Minutes 
Book 2020 – Page 100 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank  



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Donna Hosch, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Administration 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the sell-back of cemetery plots to the Town from Mr. and Mrs. Dalton in the amount of 

$1,200.00 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

Paul and Faye Dalton wish to sell back Lot 155 Plots B and C to the Town, their requesting a refund of 

$1,200.00.  This request was made via telephone conversation, and I’ve asked the Dalton’s for an email 

reflecting this request.  A copy of the Grants of Burial Rights are in the Clerk’s Office. 

 

Attachments 

 None 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_________________________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Steve Adams, Real Estate and Public Utilities Specialist 

Department(s): Administration 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve contract between the Town and Jordan Oil company to trade portions of property as 

related to the construction of the Apex Senior Center 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

As a part of the construction of the Apex Senior Center there have been ongoing discussions with Jordan 

Oil Company to trade property from their lot at 314 North Hughes Street to and from the Apex 

Community Center property. As a conclusion to these discussions the attached contract and exhibit 

maps have been developed to facilitate the transaction.  

 

Attachments 

 Contract for land swap between Jordan Oil and the Town of Apex 

 Exhibit A of the contract 

 Exhibit B of the contract 

 Exhibit C of the contract 



 
 

 

NORTH CAROLINA     LAND EXCHANGE AGREEMENT  

 

WAKE COUNTY 

 

THIS LAND EXCHANGE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 

___ day of __________, 2020, by and between Larry M. Jordan (“Jordan”) and the Town of 

Apex (“Town”). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

 

WHEREAS, Section 160A-271 of the North Carolina General Statutes expressly provides 

that a city may exchange any real property belonging to the city for other real property by private 

negotiations if the city receives full and fair consideration in exchange for its property; and  

 

WHEREAS, Jordan and the Town desire to exchange with each other certain tracts of 

real property of like value. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and other 

good and valuable consideration, the receipt and legal sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Land Exchange. 

 

(a) The Town is the owner of a certain tract of land comprising 10.7992 acres located 

in the County of Wake, State of North Carolina, which is designated as PIN #0742-52-5165 by 

the Wake County Revenue Department, and is more particularly described in the deeds recorded 

in Deed Book 9105, Page 2240; Deed Book 8062, Page 0374; Deed Book 7765, Page 0232; 

Deed Book 2391, Page 0439; and Deed Book 8322, Page 1864; and as “Lots 1, 2, 3, and 4” as 

shown in “Recombination Survey for Town of Apex,” recorded in Book of Maps 2001, Page 

0324, Wake County Registry. The portion of PIN #0742-52-5165 to be exchanged is comprised 

of 0.0103 acres and shall be known as the Town Tract, and is shown on the attached Survey, 

labeled as Exhibit A. 

  

(b) Jordan is the owner of a certain tract of land comprising 1.4629 acres located in 

the County of Wake, State of North Carolina, which is designated as PIN #0742-51-4793 by the 

Wake County Revenue Department, and is more particularly described in the deed recorded in 

Deed Book 1209, Page 0380 and as “Lots Nos. 17, 18, 19, 21, and 23 of Block ‘C’” as shown 

and recorded in Book of Maps 1911, Page 0078, Wake County Registry. The portion of PIN 

#0742-51-4793 to be exchanged is comprised of 0.0421 acres and shall be known as the Jordan 

Tract, and is shown on the attached Survey, labeled as Exhibit A. 

 

(c) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Jordan agrees to exchange 

the Jordan Tract for the Town Tract and the Town agrees to exchange the Town Tract for the 

Jordan Tract (the “Exchange”).  The consideration provided by each party to the other shall be 



 

 
 

2  

the simultaneous conveyance of the Jordan Tract by Jordan to the Town and the conveyance of 

the Town Tract by the Town to Jordan, as well as the items described in Section 2. 

 

Section 2. Additional Items for Supplemental Consideration. 

 

(a) The Town will provide a fence along the eastern property line as shown by the red 

line on Exhibit B attached. The fence will be of like kind and quality as the fence to be installed 

throughout the eastern property line of the Town Tract for the Senior Center project. The Town 

will purchase and install the fence on Jordan property and Jordan will own the fence and be 

responsible for maintenance of the fence as a fixture upon the Jordan property. The Town will be 

responsible for cleaning up and restoring the Jordan property to its status prior to commencing 

work on the new fence. 

 

(b) The generator on the Jordan property, as shown on Exhibit C attached, will be 

relocated to a new location on the Jordan property, as shown on Exhibit C. The brick enclosure 

around the generator will be rebuilt with a wall and roof in the new generator location as part of 

the relocation process. The Town will pay for all costs associated with the relocation of the 

generator, including construction of a new generator pad, permits, any government entitlements, 

and clean up and restoration of the Jordan property following the relocation of the generator. 

 

Section 3.  Survey. 

 

The Survey, titled Recombination Plat for Town of Apex and Larry Mack Jordan, dated 

on March 13, 2020, is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the Parties agree to use it for the 

purposes of effecting this Agreement. 

 

Section 4.  Commissions; Agency. 

 

Neither party shall be responsible for payment of any commission payable to a broker or 

agent arising out of this transaction except as specifically retained and agreed by that party, and 

each party agrees to otherwise indemnify the other, non-retaining, party from liability for any 

such commission. 

 

 Section 5.  Cooperation. 

 

 Each party agrees to take such action and execute such documents as are reasonably 

necessary to enable the other party to use the property it acquires under this agreement for the use 

intended by the acquiring party. 

 

 Section 6.  Environmental.   

 

Each party warrants that, to the best of that party’s knowledge, the property being 

conveyed by that party is free of underground storage tanks, pollution, contamination, hazardous 

materials, toxic wastes, asbestos, and products containing same, and is in compliance with all 

environmental regulations.  Each party shall, upon signing this contract, furnish the other party 

with any available environmental reports or audits pertaining to the property being conveyed by 



 

 
 

3  

that party. 

 

Section 7.  Property Condition.   

 

Except as specifically set forth above, neither party warrants the physical condition of the 

property being conveyed by that party or any improvements thereon, and each tract is conveyed 

“as-is” as to physical condition. 

  

Section 8.  Closing.   

 

The closing (the “Closing”) of the Exchange shall occur no later than _______________, 

2020 (the “Closing Date”), at a location designated by the Town.  At Closing, the following 

shall occur: 

 

(a) Each party shall deliver to the other party the items set forth below, to the 

reasonable satisfaction of each party’s counsel: 

 

(i) A General Warranty Deed (the “Deed”) fully and duly executed and 

acknowledged by the party, that conveys to the other party the tract as provided in Section 

1.  Each party agrees to pay at Closing the cost of the excise tax if any due and payable in 

connection with recording the General Warranty Deed from it to the other party and to 

pay at Closing the cost of recording the General Warranty Deed to it from the other party; 

 

(ii) Each party shall provide the other with an affidavit (the "Title Affidavit”) 

stating that there are no unpaid debts for work performed on or materials provided to that 

party’s tract as of the Closing Date; 

  

(iii) Each party shall provide the other with a certificate (the “FIRPTA 

Certificate”) executed and sworn to by it that it is not a "foreign person" as defined under 

Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code; 

 

(b) Each party shall pay for the cost of the title insurance policy (if any) obtained by it 

for the tract to be conveyed to it.  Each party shall pay its own costs and expenses incurred in 

connection with this Agreement, including its respective attorneys' fees and any other expenses 

specifically allocated hereunder. 

 

(c) Each party shall pay the real estate taxes due on its own tract that it is conveying 

to the other party, or will be due in the year at closing.  Each party shall be responsible for any 

special assessments which are owing or due on its property as of the Closing Date.  The 

provisions of this Section shall survive the Closing.  

 

Section 9.  Title. 

 

 (a) At Closing, each party shall deliver to the other the Deed, subject to Acceptable 

Encumbrances (as defined below), conveying to the other, an indefeasible, fee simple, 

marketable title to the Property, insurable at regular rates by a reputable title insurance company 



 

 
 

4  

of Purchaser's choice (the “Title Company”). 

 

 (b) Within ten (10) days after the Execution Date of this Agreement, each party 

agrees to deliver to the other copies of all relevant title information and title policies in 

possession of, or reasonably available to it. 

 

(c) As a condition to being obligated to close, each party shall be able to obtain a 

commitment for a policy of title insurance insuring title to the property it will receive at standard 

rates from the Title Company, subject only to the following (collectively the "Acceptable 

Encumbrances"): 

 

(i) Real property taxes for the year in which the sale and purchase shall be 

closed. 

 

(ii) Any other exceptions that specifically approved in writing.  

 

(d) Acceptable Encumbrances are limited to the following:  any easements to the 

Town of Apex. 

 

(e) Each party shall have until fifteen (15) days before the Closing Date within which 

to cause the title to the Property to be examined and then to notify the other party of any 

objections thereto that render title other than good, marketable and insurable.  If a party so 

notifies the other party and the other party does not cure the title defect within ten (10) days of 

the mailing of the Notice, then notifying party shall have the right to terminate this contract by 

written Notice to the other party.   

 

Section 10.  Further Warranties. 

 

The parties respectively make the following representations to each other.  Such 

representations also shall be deemed made as of the Closing.  

 

(a) Each party has the full right, power, and authority to execute, deliver, and 

perform this Agreement. 

(b) There are no unpaid bills for labor or materials related to the tracts.  There 

are no taxes, charges or assessments that would constitute a lien against the tracts that are 

unpaid other than ad valorem taxes for the current year now due and payable. 

 

 (c)  Each party has complied with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, 

and restrictions relating to its tracts. 

 

Section 11.  Notices. 

 

Any notice required under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered in 

person, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally recognized overnight 

delivery service.  Notices shall be effective as of the time of delivery.  Notices shall be addressed 

as follows:  



 

 
 

5  

 

To Jordan: Larry M. Jordan, P.O. Box 220, Apex, NC 27502-0220 

 

To Town: Drew Havens, Town Manager, Town of Apex, P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC, 

27502 

 

Either party may, at any time, and from time to time, designate in writing a substitute address by 

giving notice to the other party. 

 

Section 12.  Further Assurances. 

 

Each of the parties hereto agrees to perform, execute, acknowledge and deliver and cause 

to be performed, executed, acknowledged and delivered all such further acts, assignments, 

transfers and assurances as shall reasonably be requested of it in order to carry out this 

Agreement.  Without in any manner limiting their specific rights and obligations set forth in this 

Agreement, the parties declare their intention to cooperate with each other in effecting the terms 

of this Agreement. 

  

Section 13.  Other Terms or Conditions.   

 

This Agreement is the entire agreement between Jordan and the Town concerning the 

properties and no modification hereof is effective unless it be in writing and signed by the 

parties.  This Agreement shall be binding and inure to the benefit of Jordan and the Town, their 

heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns.  

 

EXECUTED the date and year noted beside the respective signatures. 

 

  

 Larry M. Jordan    

 

 By: _____________________________________  

 

NORTH CAROLINA 

_______________ COUNTY 

 

I, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Larry M. Jordan personally 

appeared before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing instrument. 

Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this ___ day of __________, 2020. 

 

      

[Signature of Notary] 

 

      

[Print of  Type Notary Name] 

 

My Commission Expires:    



 

 
 

6  

       Town of Apex 

 

 

       ____________________________ 

(Corporate Seal)     Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WAKE 

 

I, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Donna B. Hosch personally 

came before me this day and acknowledged that she is Town Clerk of the Town of Apex, a North 

Carolina Municipal Corporation, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the 

corporation, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its Mayor, sealed with its 

corporate seal and attested by her as its Town Clerk.  Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, 

this the ____ day of _______________, 2020. 

 

        

[Notary Signature] 

 

     , Notary Public 

[Print or Type Notary Name]    

 

My Commission Expires: _______________________ 

 

 

 
 

 





N
e

w
 F

e
n

ce
 L

in
e

 a
t Jo

rd
a

n
 P

ro
p

e
rty

02/05/2020



@ AT
AB AREA DRAIN
ACC ACCENT COLOR
ACT ACOUSTICAL CEILING TILE
ACOUS ACOUSTIC
ACW ACOUSTICAL WALL PANELS
ADJ ADJUSTABLE
AE APPROVED EQUAL
AFF ABOVE FINISH FLOOR
AFL ATHLETIC FLOORING
AHU AIR HANDLING UNIT
ALB ALUMINUM BASE
ALT ALUMINUM TILE
ALUM ALUMINUM
ANOD ANODIZED
ANSI AMERICAN NATIONAL

STANDARDS INSTITUTE
ATTEN ATTENUATION
AWP ACRYLIC WALL PANELS

BBT BIOBASED TILE
BF BLOCK FILL
BFC BROOMED FINISHED

CONCRETE
BL BLINDS
BLDG BUILDING
BLKG BLOCKING
BOT BOTTOM
BFG BULLET PROOF GLASS
CB# CATCH BASIN
CEM CEMENTIOUS SIDING
CF CORK FLOORING
CFCI CONTRACTOR FURNISHED,

CONTRACTOR INSTALLED
CFT CERAMIC FLOOR TILE
CG CURVED CEILING GRID
CI CAST IRON
CI# CURB INLET
CJ CONTROL JOINT
CLG CEILING
CL CENTERLINE
CMU CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT
CO CLEAN OUT
COL COLUMN
CONC CONCRETE
CONSTR CONSTRUCTION
CONTR CONTRACTOR
CORR CORRUGATED
CPT CARPET
CPTT CARPET TILE
CTB CERAMIC TILE BASE
CRC COLD ROLLED CHANNEL
CRF CORK RUBBER FLOORING
CS COUNTERSUNK
CWT CERAMIC WALL TILE
DET DETAIL
DEPT DRY FOG PAINT
DIA DIAMETER
DISP DISPENSER
DN DOWN
DP DEEP
DR DOOR
DS DOWNSPOUT

E/W EACH WAY
EDG EDGE BANDING
EES EMERGENCY EYE WASH
AND SHOWER
EFC EPOXY FLOOR COATING
EIFS EXTERIOR INSULATION
FINISH SYSTEM
EIP EXISTING IRON PIPE
ELEV ELEVATION

EJ EXPANSION JOINT
EN ENAMEL
EPT HIGH PERFORMANCE

EPOXY PAINT
EQ EQUAL
EST EXISTING
EXT EXTERIOR
EXP EXPOSED CEILING
EWC ELECTRIC WATER
COOLER
FC FIRECODE
FD FLOOR DRAIN
FEB FIRE EXSTINGUISHER

BRACKET
FEC FIRE EXSTINGUISHER

CABINET
FF FINISH FLOOR
FH FIRE HYDRANT
FLU FLOURESCENT
FOF FACE OF FRAME
FOM FACE OF MASONRY
FTG FOOTING
GC GENERAL CONTRACTOR
GCT GRANITE COUNTERTOP
GA GAGE
GALV GALVANIZED
GEN GENERATOR
GFT GRANITE FLOOR TILE
GL GLASS
GMT GLASS MOSAIC TILE
GT GROUT
GYP GYPSUM BOARD

HC HOLLOW CORE
HB HOSE BIB
HC HANDICAPP
HDWD HARDWOOD
HM HOLLOW METAL
HORZ HORIZONTAL
HR HOUR
ICF INFECTION CONTROL

FLOORING
ID INSIDE DIAMETER
INSTAL INSTALLATION
INSUL INSULATION
INT INTERIOR
INV INVERT

JB JOIST BEARING
JB# JUNCTION BOX
JT JOINT
L LONG
LFT LINOLEUM FLOOR TILE
LP LIGHT POLE
LST LINOLEUM SHEET

FLOORING
LVT LUXURY VINYL TILE

MATL MATERIAL
MAX MAXIMUM
MC METAL CANOPY
MCT METAL CEILING TILE
MB MASONRY - BRICK
MECH MECHANICAL
MFR MANUFACTURER
MFT MARBLE FLOOR TILE
MIN MINIMUM
MO MASONRY OPENING
MTB MARBLE TILE BASE
MTD MOUNTED
MTL METAL
MWM METAL WALK-OFF MAT
MWT MARBLE WALL TILE

NIC NOT IN CONTRACT
NOM NORMAL

OC ON CENTER
OD OUTSIDE DIAMETER
OFOI OWNER FURNISHED,

OWNER INSTALLED
OFCI OWNER FURNISHED,

CONTRACTOR INSTALLED
OPP OPPOSITE
OZ OUNCE

P-LAM PLASTIC LAMINATE
P-LAM WD PLASTIC LAMINATE

WOOD DOORS
PC POLISHED CONCRETE
PERF PERFORATED
PFT PORCELAIN FLOOR TILE
PIV POST INDICATOR VALVE
PL PLATE
PLYWD PLYWOOD
PNT PAINT
POLYETH POLYETHYLENE
PP POWER POLE
PR PAIR
PTB PORCELAIN TILE BASE
PTD PAINTED
PTP PLASTIC TOILET

PARTITIONS
PWT PORCELAIN WALL TILE
PVC POLYVINYL CHLORIDE

QS QUARTZ SURFACE
QT QUARRY TILE
QZT QUARTZ TILE

R RADIUS
R&S ROD AND SHELF
RB RUBBER BASE
RBT RUBBER TILE
RCP REINFORCED CONCRETE
RD ROOF DRAIN
RDL ROOF DRAIN LEADER
RECEPT RECEPTACLE
RECYF RECYCLED FLOORING
REQD REQUIRED
RES RESILIENT
RM RUBBER MAT
ROW RIGHT OF WAY
RSF RESINOUS FLOORING
RTF RESILENT TILE FLOORING

SAT SPRAYED ACOUSTICAL
TREATMENT

SC SEALED CONCRETE
SCH SCHEDULE
SCW SOLID CORE WOOD
SDT STATIC DISSIPATIVE TILE
SF SQUARE FEET
SHEATH SHEATHING
SIM SIMILAR
SLS SOLID SURFACE
SP SPACES
SQ SQUARE
SS STAINLESS STEEL
SSC STAINED SEALED

CONCRETE
SRT SLIP RESISTANT TILE
ST STEEL
ST&R STAIR TREADS AND

RISERS
STD STANDARD
SUSP SUSPENDED

TC TERRA COTTA
T&G TONGUE AND

GROOVE
TCA TILE COUNCIL OF

AMERICA
TELE TELEPHONE
TEMP TEMPERED
TEXD TEXTURED
TFT TERRAZZO FLOOR

TILE
TOC TOP OF CURB
TOS TOP OF STEEL
TP TELEPHONE POLE
TVB TELEVISION

MOUNTING BRACKET
TYP TYPICAL

UL UNDERWRITERS
LABORATORY

U/L UTILITY/LIGHTS
UON UNLESS OTHERWISE

NOTED

VACT VINYL ACOUSTICAL
TILE

VB VAPOR BARRIER
VCT VINYL COMPOSITION

TILE
VERT VERTICAL
VIF VERIFY IN FIELD
VWC VINYL WALL

COVERING

W/ WITH
WC WATER CLOSET
WD WOOD
WF WOOD FLOORING
WWF WELDED WIRE

FABRIC
WWM WELDED WIRE MESH

ABBREVIATIONS

PROJECT LOCATION

Th
is 

dra
win

g a
nd

 th
e d

es
ign

 sh
ow

n i
s t

he
pro

pe
rty

 of
 Sm

ith
 Si

nn
ett

 Ar
ch

ite
ctu

re,
P.A

.  t
he

 re
pro

du
cti

on
 or

 us
e o

f th
is

pro
pe

rty
 w

ith
ou

t th
e w

ritt
en

 co
ns

en
t o

f th
e

Ar
ch

ite
ct 

is 
pro

hib
ite

d. 
 An

y i
nfr

ing
em

en
t

of 
the

 ow
ne

rsh
ip 

rig
hts

 w
ill b

e s
ub

jec
t to

leg
al 

ac
tio

n. 
 Al

l c
op

ies
 of

 th
is 

dra
win

g
mu

st 
be

 re
tur

ne
d t

o t
he

 Ar
ch

ite
ct 

at 
the

co
mp

let
ion

 of
 th

e c
on

tra
ct.

Sm
ith

 Si
nn

ett
 Ar

ch
ite

ctu
re,

 P.
A. 

20
19

TH
IS 

DR
AW

IN
G 

IS 
FO

RM
AT

TE
D 

TO
BE

 PR
IN

TE
D 

ON
 A 

24
" X

 36
" S

HE
ET

T 9
19

 78
1 8

58
2

F 9
19

 78
1 3

97
9

46
00

 La
ke

 B
oo

ne
 Tr

ail
Su

ite
 20

5
Ra

lei
gh

, N
C 

27
60

7

inf
o@

sm
ith

sin
ne

tt.c
om

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESCRIPTIONDATEID

2017016 03 SEPT 2019

PR
IC

IN
G 

SE
T

GE
NE

RA
TO

R 
RE

LO
CA

TI
ON

3
1
4
 
N

 
H

U
G

H
E

S
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

L
G

 
J
O

R
D

A
N

 
O

I
L

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

A
P

E
X

,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

G0-01

COVER SHEET

JBS

RC

GENERATOR RELOCATION

INDEX OF DRAWINGSVICINITY MAP

GENERAL

G0-01 COVER SHEET

ARCHITECTURAL

A0-00
A1-00 PLANS, ELEVATIONS, & DETAILS

ELECTRICAL

E0-01 ELECTRICAL LEAD SHEET

DESIGN PROFESSIONALS EXISTING PROJECT PHOTOS

BIRDS EYE

ARCHITECTURE:
SMITH SINNETT ARCHITECTURE
4600 LAKE BOONE TRAIL, SUITE 205
RALEIGH, NC  27607
919.781.8582
POC: JAY SIKES, AIA
jsikes@smithsinnett.com

MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, AND FIRE PROTECTION:
PROGRESSIVE DESIGN COLLABORATIVE, LTD
3101 POPLARWOOD COURT, SUITE 320
RALEIGH, NC  27604
919.790.9989 (P)
POC: SCOTT ENNIS, PE
sennis@pdcengineers.com

PROJECT CONTACT:
TOWN OF APEX
73 HUNTER STREET, P.O. BOX 250
APEX, NC 27502
919.249.3414 (P)
POC: DENNIS BROWN, PROJECT MANAGER
dennis.brown@apexnc.org

314 N HUGHES STREET, APEX, NC 27502
LG JORDAN OIL COMPANY

45

1

2
A2-03

DETAIL NO.

NORTH ARROW

DEMO MARK

DRAWING NO.

SHEET NO.

#

1
View Name

1/8" = 1'-0"

A1-01

A 11'-0"

SHEET NUMBERING LEGEND

DISCIPLINE

G GENERAL

C CIVIL

L LANDSCAPE

S STRUCTURAL

A ARCHITECTURAL

Q EQUIPMENT

P PLUMBING

M MECHANICAL

E ELECTRICAL

FP FIRE PROTECTION

X MISCELLANEOUS

PAGE NUMBERSECTION

0 DEMOLITION / GENERAL

1 PLANS

2 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

3 BUILDING / WALL SECTIONS

4 ELARGED PLANS, CASEWORK,

INTERIOR ELEVATIONS &

RELATED DETAILS

5 DETAILS

6 WINDOW & DOOR SCHEDULES

7 FINISH PLAN & SCHEDULES

8 VERTICAL CIRCULATION

9 BID ALTERNATES

A1-01

SYMBOL LEGEND

W1

10
01

B1

EHD

B

SCALE

DRAWING NAME

SHEET NO.

SECTION MARK

Room name

101A

ROOM NAME/NUMBER

DOOR MARK

WINDOW MARK

CASEWORK MARK

EQUIPMENT MARK

REVISION AREA / NUMBER

CEILING TYPE / HEIGHT

WALL MARK

ACCESSORIES MARK

ELEVATION VALUE

REFERENCE

DESCRIPTION

15' - 4"
AFF

2
A2-03

SHEET NO.

DETAIL NO.

A2-03 2

2
A2-03 CALLOUT DETAIL

SHEET NO.

DETAIL NO.

EXTERIOR ELEVATION

MARK

INTERIOR ELEVATION

MARK

SHEET NO.

DETAIL NO.

EGRESS CALCULATION

MARK

CONTROL / ELEVATION

MARK

DOOR MARK

REQUIRED WIDTH

ANTICIPATED EGRESS LOAD

MAXIMUM

EGRESS LOAD

EGRESS WIDTH

DEMO PLANS & ELEVATIONS

OWNER:
LG JORDAN OIL CO.
314 NORTH HUGHES STREET
APEX, NC 27502
919.267.2448 (P)

E1-01 SITE POWER PLAN



2
A0-00

7'-8"

2
'-
6
"

12'-0"

REMOVE EXISTING STEEL POSTS & BRACKETS & STORE FOR

REASSEMBLY AT NEW LOCATION.

REMOVE EXISTING ROOF & STORE FOR REASSEMBLY AT

NEW LOCATION.

REMOVE EXISTING METAL GRATE & STORE FOR

REASSEMBLY AT NEW LOCATION.

RELOCATE EXISTING GENERATOR

- SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

RELOCATE EXISTING ELEC. EQUIPMENT

 - SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

RELOCATE & RECONNECT EXISTING DIESEL TANK

DEMOLISH EXISTING BRICK WALL IN ITS ENTIRETY.

DEMOLISH EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB IN ITS ENTIRETY.

ROOF ABOVE

8
'-
0
"

V.I.F.

V
.
I
.
F

.

V
.
I
.
F

.

V.I.F.

3
A0-00

4
A0-00

8" V.I.F.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

6

4

1

11

1 8

3

2

5

7

5
'-
1 
1/
2
"

14'-4"

3
'-
10

"

V.I.F.

V
.
I
.
F

.
V

.
I
.
F

.

V
.
I
.
F

.

4

2

1

5

7

8

9
'-
7
"

3

2

1

1

12'-0"

1'
-2

"

3
'-
2
"

V
.
I
.
F

.

V
.
I
.
F

.

3'-0"

V
.
I
.
F

.

V.I.F.

V

.
I
.
F

.

DEMO KEYNOTES

3
'-
1 
1/
4
"

Th
is 

dra
win

g a
nd

 th
e d

es
ign

 sh
ow

n i
s t

he
pro

pe
rty

 of
 Sm

ith
 Si

nn
ett

 Ar
ch

ite
ctu

re,
P.A

.  t
he

 re
pro

du
cti

on
 or

 us
e o

f th
is

pro
pe

rty
 w

ith
ou

t th
e w

ritt
en

 co
ns

en
t o

f th
e

Ar
ch

ite
ct 

is 
pro

hib
ite

d. 
 An

y i
nfr

ing
em

en
t

of 
the

 ow
ne

rsh
ip 

rig
hts

 w
ill b

e s
ub

jec
t to

leg
al 

ac
tio

n. 
 Al

l c
op

ies
 of

 th
is 

dra
win

g
mu

st 
be

 re
tur

ne
d t

o t
he

 Ar
ch

ite
ct 

at 
the

co
mp

let
ion

 of
 th

e c
on

tra
ct.

Sm
ith

 Si
nn

ett
 Ar

ch
ite

ctu
re,

 P.
A. 

20
19

TH
IS 

DR
AW

IN
G 

IS 
FO

RM
AT

TE
D 

TO
BE

 PR
IN

TE
D 

ON
 A 

24
" X

 36
" S

HE
ET

T 9
19

 78
1 8

58
2

F 9
19

 78
1 3

97
9

46
00

 La
ke

 B
oo

ne
 Tr

ail
Su

ite
 20

5
Ra

lei
gh

, N
C 

27
60

7

inf
o@

sm
ith

sin
ne

tt.c
om

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESCRIPTIONDATEID

2017016 03 SEPT 2019

PR
IC

IN
G 

SE
T

GE
NE

RA
TO

R 
RE

LO
CA

TI
ON

3
1
4
 
N

 
H

U
G

H
E

S
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

L
G

 
J
O

R
D

A
N

 
O

I
L

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

A
P

E
X

,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

A0-00

DEMO PLANS &

ELEVATIONS

JBS

RC

 1/32" = 1'-0"

A0-00

1
OVERALL DEMO PLAN

 1/4" = 1'-0"

A0-00

4
FRONT DEMO ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"

A0-00

3
SIDE DEMO ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"

A0-00

2
DEMO PLAN



2
A1-00

RELOCATED ROOF ABOVE

12'-0"6'-4"

8
'-
0
"

6
'-
8
"

8"
1'-2"

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

1'
-9

 1
/2

"

V.I.F.

V
.
I
.
F

.

4
"

7
'-
3
 1
/2

"

10"9'-6"1'-0"

4"

V.I.F.

V.I.F.

V.I.F.

V.I.F.

V
.
I
.
F

.

V
.
I
.
F

.

5
'-
0
"

1'
-1
 1
/2

"

3
'-
1 
1/
4
"

2'-0" 3'-0"

NEW SLAB

RELOCATED GENERATOR

- SEE ELEC. DWGS

DIESEL TANK BY OWNER

NEW BRICK WALL

RELOCATED STEEL

POST & BRACKET, TYP.

3
A1-00

4
A1-00

6
A1-00

RELOCATED ROOF

RELOCATED ROOF

NEW SLAB

RELOCATED GENERATOR

- SEE ELEC. DWGS

RELOCATED METAL GRATE

RELOCATED STEEL

POST & BRACKET

RELOCATED STEEL

POST & BRACKET

NEW BRICK WALL

NEW SLAB

RELOCATED GENERATOR

- SEE ELEC. DWGS

RELOCATED STEEL

POST & BRACKET

RELOCATED STEEL

POST & BRACKET

NEW BRICK WALL

5
A1-00

RELOCATED ROOF

RELOCATED STEEL POST &

BRACKET

RELOCATED STEEL POST &

BRACKET

4
"

1'-0"

4
"

GRADE

BOLT THROUGH BEAM

BOLT THROUGH WALL

1'
-0

"

#5 REBAR AT 24" O.C.

#5 REBAR AT 24" O.C.

TURN INTO FOOTING

(2) #5 REBAR CONT.

CONCRETE SLAB &

FOUNDATION

ROWLOCK COURSE

FILL CAVITY

RELOCATED ROOF

RELOCATED STEEL POST &

BRACKET

RELOCATED METAL GRATE

STEEL LINTEL AT OPENING

MOUND MORTAR AT BASE OF

OPENING

GRADE

CONCRETE SLAB &

FOUNDATION

RELOCATED STEEL POST &

BRACKET

Th
is 

dra
win

g a
nd

 th
e d

es
ign

 sh
ow

n i
s t

he
pro

pe
rty

 of
 Sm

ith
 Si

nn
ett

 Ar
ch

ite
ctu

re,
P.A

.  t
he

 re
pro

du
cti

on
 or

 us
e o

f th
is

pro
pe

rty
 w

ith
ou

t th
e w

ritt
en

 co
ns

en
t o

f th
e

Ar
ch

ite
ct 

is 
pro

hib
ite

d. 
 An

y i
nfr

ing
em

en
t

of 
the

 ow
ne

rsh
ip 

rig
hts

 w
ill b

e s
ub

jec
t to

leg
al 

ac
tio

n. 
 Al

l c
op

ies
 of

 th
is 

dra
win

g
mu

st 
be

 re
tur

ne
d t

o t
he

 Ar
ch

ite
ct 

at 
the

co
mp

let
ion

 of
 th

e c
on

tra
ct.

Sm
ith

 Si
nn

ett
 Ar

ch
ite

ctu
re,

 P.
A. 

20
19

TH
IS 

DR
AW

IN
G 

IS 
FO

RM
AT

TE
D 

TO
BE

 PR
IN

TE
D 

ON
 A 

24
" X

 36
" S

HE
ET

T 9
19

 78
1 8

58
2

F 9
19

 78
1 3

97
9

46
00

 La
ke

 B
oo

ne
 Tr

ail
Su

ite
 20

5
Ra

lei
gh

, N
C 

27
60

7

inf
o@

sm
ith

sin
ne

tt.c
om

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESCRIPTIONDATEID

2017016 03 SEPT 2019

PR
IC

IN
G 

SE
T

GE
NE

RA
TO

R 
RE

LO
CA

TI
ON

3
1
4
 
N

 
H

U
G

H
E

S
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

L
G

 
J
O

R
D

A
N

 
O

I
L

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

A
P

E
X

,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

A1-00

PLANS,

ELEVATIONS, &

DETAILS

JBS

RC

 1/32" = 1'-0"

A1-00

1
OVERALL PLAN

 1/4" = 1'-0"

A1-00

4
FRONT ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"

A1-00

3
SIDE ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"

A1-00

2
PLAN

 3/4" = 1'-0"

A1-00

5
SECTION

 3/4" = 1'-0"

A1-00

6
SECTION







 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Statement of the Apex Town Council pursuant to G.S. 160A-383 addressing action on 

the various Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments of May 5, 2020. 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval. 

 

Item Details 

 

Attachments 

 Statement of Town Council 



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-383 ADDRESSING ACTION ON 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) AMENDMENTS OF MAY 5, 2020 
 
 

 Pursuant to G.S. §160A-384 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the Planning 
Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), 
of a public hearing on UDO Amendments before the Town Council on the 17th day of March 2020. The 
public hearing was continued to the 5th day of May 2020. 
 

 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing via remote participation pursuant to G.S. §166A-
19.24 on the 5th day of May 2020. Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager, presented the Planning 
Board's vote to recommend approval with recommendations by a vote of 6-0 at the public hearing. 
 

 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the UDO Amendments and who were 
residents of Apex or its extraterritorial jurisdiction were allowed to present evidence prior to the public 
hearing and up to 24 hours after the close of the public hearing. No one who wanted to provide comment 
was turned away, and no written comments were submitted within 24 hours of the close of the public 
hearing. 
 

 The Town Council by a vote of 5 to 0 approved the Ordinance for UDO Amendments.  
 

The Apex Town Council finds from information and testimony provided at the public hearing that 
the approval of the UDO Amendments of May 5, 2020 is consistent with the Advance Apex: The 2045 Plan 
and reasonable and in the public interest for the following reason(s): 

 
1. The amendments to UDO Sec. 2.1.2.B Planning Board, Membership and 2.1.2.D Quorum 

accomplish the following: 
a. increases the number of voting members to nine (9) in order to add a member residing 

outside of the corporate limit and ETJ and within the area covered by the 2045 Land Use 
Map;  

b. adds a non-voting member who is a member of the Apex Historical Society in order to 
provide input on sites with historical significance;  

c. provide new criteria for the composition of the Board in order to address residency 
requirements for the new members added; 

d. reduces the number of members with special training or experience in planning, real 
estate development, architecture, landscape architecture, and the law from a majority to 
half in order to allow more people without such training to serve;  

e. reduces the length of term to two (2) years in order for the terms to more closely align 
with the Council election cycle and increases the number of terms allowed to five (5) in 
order to add an additional year to the maximum length of service; and  

f. removes the requirement for a public hearing when removing a Planning Board member 
in order to rely solely on the criteria for removal. 

2. The amendments to Secs. 2.1.2.I Planning Board, Compensation; 2.1.3.H Board of Adjustment, 
Compensation; and 2.1.4.I Transit Advisory Committee, Compensation and the addition of 
Secs. 2.1.5.C Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission, Compensation 
and 2.1.9.C Apex Environmental Advisory Board, Compensation allow for members of said 
groups to receive compensation as authorized by the Town Council in the annual budget in 
order to encourage residents to apply to said groups who may not otherwise due to financial 
obligations. 

3. The amendments to UDO Secs. 4.2.2 Use Table and Sec. 4.4.5.F Supplemental Standards, 
Commercial Uses, Public Accommodation add the use “Hotel or motel” to the Neighborhood 



Business (B1) zoning district and update the supplemental standards by removing antiquated 
standards currently applicable in all districts and adding new standards applicable only in the 
B1 and B2 districts that ensure the use’s compatibility with others in those districts. 

4. The amendments to UDO Sec. 7.1.7 Substitution of Fees in Lieu of Public Improvements 
removes references to the Planning Board that are no longer applicable based on past 
amendments to the subdivision process and makes minor formatting changes. 

 

 
______________________________________ 
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
 
___________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

 
_________________________ 
Date 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020   

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Russell H. Dalton, PE, Senior Transportation Engineer 

Department(s): Public Works & Transportation, Police, and Fire 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve an Ordinance amending Section 20-164 with the addition of subsection (37) to enforce a 

No Parking restriction along both sides of both directions of Great Lawn Road and along both sides of 

Sunflower Road.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

PW&T Transportation staff were contacted by Fire Department concerning parking along Great Lawn 

Road in Smith Farm.  From Deputy Fire Marshal David Dillon:  “Per a request from Lennar I conducted a 

site visit today to put eyes on a parking issue, the residents on Great Lawn between Richardson and 

Farmhouse are parking in front of their homes rather than on the alleys designed for rear loading.  I 

measured 9.5’ of clearance between the parked car and edge of pavement, a fire apparatus would 

not have clearance without trying to onboard the curb and landscaping, during aerial firefighting the 

ladder trucks would not be able to deploy outriggers.  Lennar is requesting the Town consider making 

Great Lawn a no parking area, I agree with the request.”  In addition, PW&T Transportation staff identified 

a similar geometric issue for the narrow one-way loop of Sunflower Road around a large median, and 

based on the aforementioned request also recommend the same parking restriction on Sunflower Road.  

Those homes are also served by an alley.  Staff recommend the posting of signs as shown in the 

attached map. 

 

Attachments 



 

 Ordinance 20-164(37) 

 Map of proposed “No Parking Both Sides of Street” 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-____ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 20-164 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE TOWN OF APEX 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex as 

follows: 

Section 1. Section 20-164 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Apex is hereby 

amended to add subsection (37) as follows: 

Sec. 20-164. - No parking zones. 

(37)  Along both sides of both directions of Great Lawn Road and along both 

sides of Sunflower Road. 

 

Section 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 

repealed.  If any part of this ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, such 

adjudication shall apply only to such part so adjudged and the remainder of the 

ordinance shall be deemed valid and effective. 

Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective on the 19th day May 2020. 

 

Introduced by Council Member _______________________________________ 

Seconded by Council Member ________________________________________ 

 

Attest:          TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

____________________________      __________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, CMC, NCCMC      Jacques K. Gilbert        

Town Clerk         Mayor 

 

Approved As To Form: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Laurie L. Hohe,  

Town Attorney 

 



Town of Apex Ord 20-164 (37) Proposed: 

Smith Farm “No Parking” Great Lawn Rd & Sunflower Rd – May 2020 

 

 

 

Yellow dots signify “No Parking Both Sides of Street” signs to be posted on Great 

Lawn Road and on Sunflower Road upon entering the street. 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney 

Department(s): Town Attorney 

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to repeal the Remote Participation Policy for Meetings of the Apex Town Council adopted on March 

17, 2020.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

The Town Council adopted a Remote Participation Policy to allow council members to participate in 

meetings of the Town Council using video meeting and/or telephonic platforms. On May 4, 2020, Session 

Law 2020-3 (Senate Bill 704) was signed into law enabling remote meetings during a state of emergency 

and providing detailed procedures to be followed when meeting remotely. Due to the enactment of 

Session Law 2020-3, the Council’s Remote Participation Policy is no longer necessary.  When meeting 

remotely, the Council will follow the provisions of Session Law 2020-3.  

 

Attachments 

 Remote Participation Policy 



REMOTE PARTICIPATION POLICY FOR MEETINGS OF THE 

APEX TOWN COUNCIL 
 

 
Members of the Apex Town Council (Council), may remotely participate in briefings and official 

meetings of the Council, subject to the following rules and procedures: 

 

 1. Remote participation may be used only in limited circumstances.  A Councilmember desiring 

to participate in a meeting remotely must assert one or more of the following reasons for 

being physically unable to attend the meeting: 

   i. Personal illness or disability; 

   ii. Employment purposes; or  

   iii. Family or other emergency.   

 2. Remote participation may be allowed only during open sessions when a quorum of the 

Council is physically present at the meeting and the Councilmember participating remotely is 

not  necessary to establish a quorum. 

 3. Remote participation shall not be allowed during the following: 

   a. Quasi-judicial hearings; and 

   b. Closed sessions. 

 4. A Councilmember desiring to participate in a meeting remotely must notify the Clerk of the 

need for remote participation and request approval by the Mayor of his/her remote 

participation at least 24 hours prior to the start of the meeting, unless advance notice is 

impractical. 

 5. At the start of the official meeting and prior to participating in deliberations, the Mayor shall 

announce that a Councilmember is participating remotely.  Such Councilmember shall 

identify himself or herself and state the reason that he/she is participating remotely. 

 6. A Councilmember participating remotely shall be allowed to participate in all open session 

Council-briefing discussions and open session official Council meeting discussions with the 

exception of quasi-judicial hearings.  A Councilmember participating remotely shall be able 

to vote on matters allowed under the policy. 

 7. A Councilmember participating remotely shall be provided with all documents to be   

  considered during the briefing session and the official meeting. 

 8. A Councilmember participating remotely shall participate via simultaneous and/or electronic 

communication and must be fully heard and if possible seen by other members of the Council 

and any other individuals in attendance at the official meeting.  Use of telephone, internet, or 

satellite enabled audio or video conferencing, or any other technology that enables the remote 

participant and all persons present at the meeting location to be clearly audible to one another 

is necessary.  If clear audio is not available, the Mayor may elect to disallow or discontinue 

the remote participation. 

 9. A Councilmember participating remotely shall provide a voice vote which can be heard and  

  recorded if participating by telephone and shall provide a voice and hand vote if participating  

  by video. 

 

 Adopted this ____ day of _________ 2020. 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s):  Drew Havens, Town Manager 

Department(s):  Economic Development  

  

 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve amending the current Apex Farmers Market Special Event Permit to allow for drive-

thru pickup along Seaboard Street on Saturday, May 16, 23, and 30, and June 6, 13, 20, and 27, and 

Friday, July 3, to close marked parking spaces along the east side of Seaboard Street from 8:00 a.m. until 

1:00 p.m. these days. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

The Apex Farmers Market and ADBA created a drive-thru farmers’ market along Seaboard Street for the 

Feed Apex program and operated this successfully on May 2nd and 9th. The Farmers’ Market created an 

online store where customers can pre-order their items for pick-up. Then on Saturday mornings between 

9:00am-1:00pm customers are able to drive-up and pick-up their orders from vendors in a contact free 

transaction. This new drive-thru is in place of the typical Apex Farmer’s Market on the dates noted. 

Additional dates may be added should current COVID-19 restrictions limit the full market’s return.   

 

Attachments 

 Photo/Map Location of event space 



 

Entrance 

Exit 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Jenna Shouse, Long Range Planner 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development  

  

Requested Motion 

Motion to temporarily dedicate and mark eight existing on-street parking spaces along Hunter Street to serve 

as a bus layover location for GoApex Route 1 beginning in March 2021. 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval. 

 

Item Details 

The purpose of this motion is to provide a dedicated space for the bus serving GoApex Route 1 to park 

during layover periods. A layover location is needed for approximately 10 minutes during every transit 

hour of operation to provide the bus operator an opportunity for a brief break. The Hunter Street parking 

spaces are anticipated to be a temporary layover location until the Inspections Facility on N Mason 

Street is complete. GoApex Route 1 is planned to operate Monday through Saturday from 6:00am-

10:00pm. Eight on-street parking spaces along Hunter Street, fronting Town Campus, would be used as a 

layover location. These parking spaces would be marked as GoApex Bus Only to ensure that this space is 

always available for the bus. The layover location was selected as it meets the safety and operational 

needs identified by GoCary, the anticipated operator of GoApex Route 1, and is located in close 

proximity to the transit route as well as Town facility restrooms.  

 

 

Attachments 



 

 GoApex Bus Layover 



GoApex Bus Layover 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1. Proposed Bus Layover – Routing 

   

   

 

Layover Location Route            

Proposed Layover Location 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Figure 2. Proposed Bus Layover – Parking Impacts 

Town 

Campus 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Dianne Khin, Director 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

  

Requested Motion 

Public Hearing and possible motion to adopt an Ordinance on the Question of Annexation – Apex Town 

Council’s intent to annex 1800 N Salem, LLC property containing 1.97 acres located at 1800 N Salem Street, 

Annexation #688 into the Town’s corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes, by the Planning and Community Development Department. 

 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation. 

 

Attachments 

 Annexation Ordinance 

 Annexation Petition 

 Legal Description 

 Preliminary Plat 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
   

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
Municipality No. 333 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-0519-14 
ANNEXATION PETITION NO. #688 

1800 N. Salem LLC 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS 
OF THE TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA  

P.O. Box 250, Apex, North Carolina  27502 
 

       WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has been petitioned under G.S.§160A-58.1, 
as amended, to annex the area described herein; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council has by Resolution directed the Town Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of said petition; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of said petition and a 
public hearing on the question of this annexation was held at Apex Town Hall at 
6:00 p.m. on May 19, 2020, after due notice by posting to the Town of Apex website, 
http://www.apexnc.org/news/public-notices-legal-ads; and  
 
     WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council does hereby find as a fact that said petition 
meets the requirements of G.S.§160A-58.1, as amended. 
 

After recording, please return to: 
Donna Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk 
Town of Apex 
P.O. Box 250 
Apex, NC  27502 



Page 2 
      
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina: 
 
    Section 1.   By virtue of the authority granted by G.S.§160A-58.1, as amended, 
the territory described in the attached property description and also shown as 
“Annexation Area” on the below identified survey plat is hereby annexed and 
made part of the Town of Apex, North Carolina, as of the date of adoption of this 
Ordinance on May 19, 2020.  The survey plat that describes the annexed territory is 
that certain survey plat entitled “1800 N. Salem Street, Satellite Annexation Map, 
Town of Apex, Wake County, North Carolina” McAdams (surveyors), dated April 6, 
2020” and recorded in Book of Maps book number  2020  and page number  
                             , Wake County Registry.   

    Section 2.   Upon and after the adoption of this ordinance, the territory described 
herein and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances 
and regulations in force in the Town of Apex, North Carolina, and shall be entitled 
to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the Town of Apex.  Said territory 
shall be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S.§160A-58.10, as amended. 
 
    Section 3.   The Clerk of the Town of Apex, North Carolina shall cause to be 
recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Wake County and in the Office 
of the Secretary of State at Raleigh, North Carolina and in the Office of the Wake 
County Board of Elections an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in 
Section 1 hereof, together with a duly certified copy of this Ordinance. 
 
    Adopted this the 19th day of May 2020. 
 
 

________________________________ 
      Jacques K. Gilbert 
      Mayor 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Laurie L. Hohe 
Town Attorney 
 
 



Page 3 
 
 
Legal Description 

 
 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WAKE 
 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION 
 

I, Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC, Town Clerk, Town of Apex, North Carolina, do 
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Annexation Ordinance 
No. 2020-0519-14, adopted at a meeting of the Town Council, on the 19th day of 
May 2020, the original of which will be on file in the Office of the Town Clerk of Apex, 
North Carolina. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official Seal of 
the Town of Apex, North Carolina, this the 19th day of May 2020. 
 
 
  

_______________________________________ 
Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

                      (SEAL) 



















 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development  

  

Requested Motion 

Public hearing and possible motion regarding an amendment to the Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Equestrian 

Plan map of the Comprehensive Transportation Plan; the Bike Network map of the Comprehensive Bicycle 

Plan; and the Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and Open Space Master Plan map.  

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department and Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources 

Department recommend approval. 

The Planning Board considered the amendment at their May 11, 2020 meeting and unanimously 

recommended approval.  

 

Item Details 

The purpose of this hearing is to consider consolidating bicycle and pedestrian network 

recommendations currently maintained on three separate maps on one Bicycle and Pedestrian System 

Plan map. No substantive changes are proposed with this amendment. 

 

Attachments 

 Staff report 



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendment 

May 19, 2020 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Shannon Cox, Long Range Planning Manager 

The purpose of the public hearing is to consider the facts in order to formulate a decision. The Bicycle, Pedestrian, 
and Equestrian Plan map of Advance Apex: The 2045 Comprehensive Transportation Plan; the Comprehensive 
Bike Network map of Bike Apex: The Comprehensive Bicycle Plan; and the Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and 
Open Space Master Plan map represent a network of current and future facilities that provide guidance on what 
is likely to be suitable for long term growth. The plans do not require a schedule for implementation nor do they 
set aside funding for improvements. Instead, the plans help the Town establish long term priorities. The three 
maps were last amended in September 2019.   
 
Proposed Amendment: 
 

The proposed amendment does not involve any substantive changes to the planned bicycle and pedestrian 
network; rather, it would consolidate recommendations currently maintained on three separate maps on one 
Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map. This will result in an overall system plan that is more transparent to all 
stakeholders and more efficiently and effectively maintained by staff. 
 

The Department of Planning and Community Development maintains the Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Equestrian Plan 
map and the Bike Network map. Any changes to these maps are brought forward to the Planning Board and Town 
Council for consideration in a public hearing setting. The Parks and Recreation Department maintains the Parks, 
Recreation, Greenways and Open Space Master Plan map. Changes to this map are brought forward to the Parks, 
Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission for consideration. In September 2019, amendments to 
the three maps were approved so that they currently all reflect the same existing and proposed bicycle and 
pedestrian system facilities. While new maps and recommendations may result from future planning processes, 
the proposed Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map is proposed to serve as the “living” document, maintained 
and updated in cooperation by both departments, and referenced in coordination with citizens, developers, 
regional agencies, and other stakeholders. 
 

The proposed Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map is available for viewing online at 
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31442/. Some of the features and improvements include: 

 Reference links to the three planning processes that inform the system plan map; 

 Improved labeling of existing and proposed greenways, bicycle routes, places, and roadways 

 Updated color scheme;  

 Updated symbols that clearly distinguish facility types; 

 Inclusion of future thoroughfares and collector streets to provide context for on-road 
recommendations; and, 

 Inclusion of parcel lines to provide location-based reference for recommendations. 
   
Planning Board Recommendation: 
The Planning Board considered the amendment at their May 11, 2020 meeting and unanimously recommended 
approval.   
 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission Recommendation: 
The Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission will not meet until after the Town Council public hearing. The 
Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map will be presented for information during their next meeting. 
  
Staff Recommendation: 
Planning and Community Development staff and Parks and Recreation staff recommend approval of the 
proposed amendment. 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development 

  

Requested Motion 

Public Hearing and possible motion regarding various amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance. 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval. 

The Planning Board heard these amendments at their May 11, 2020 meeting and unanimously 

recommended approval. 

 

Item Details 

Summary of UDO amendments requested by Planning staff: 

1. Amendments to Sec. 2.3.5.C Special Use, Procedures in order to remove the reference to the Planning 

Board in subsection 2.3.5.C.2.d. 

 

2. Amendments to Sec. 3.2 Zoning Districts Established in order to correct a reference to the number of 

zoning districts and to correct a typographical error. 

 

3. Amendments to Sec. 4.2.2 Use Table in order to remove the reference to Sec. 4.4.6.B.6 in the Standards 

column for the use “Manufacturing and processing, minor”. Supplemental standards do not exist for 

that use. 

 

 

Attachments 

 Staff Report 

 Ordinance 



1 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CERTAIN SECTIONS OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex as follows: 
 
 
Section 1. Section 2.3.5.C of the Unified Development Ordinance is amended to read as follows with 

additions shown as bold underlined text and deletions shown as struck-through text: 
 

2.3.5 Special Use 
… 

 C) Procedures 
… 
2) Town Council Quasi-judicial Hearing Procedures 

… 
d) At the public hearing, the Town Council shall consider the application, 

the relevant support materials, the Staff Report, the recommendation 
of the Planning Board, the testimony and/or evidence submitted by the 
applicant, and any testimony and/or evidence submitted by other 
persons. 

 
 
Section 2. Section 3.2 of the Unified Development Ordinance is amended to read as follows with 

additions shown as bold underlined text and deletions shown as struck-through text: 
 

3.2 Zoning Districts Established 
In order to carry out and implement the purpose and intent of this Ordinance, the following 
thirty-eight (38) 39 zoning districts are hereby established: 
… 
3.2.9 Overlay Districts 

 

A) Watershed Protection Overlay Districts; and 
B) Flood Damage Prevention Overlay District; and 
C) Small Town Character Overlay District.  

 
 

Section 3. Section 4.2.2 of the Unified Development Ordinance is amended to read as follows with 
additions shown as bold underlined text and deletions shown as struck-through text: 

 

4.2.2 Use Table  

Use Type 
Definition 

Section 

Zoning Districts 

Residential Business 
Planned 

Development 
Other Standards 

R 
A 

R 
R 

L 
D 

M 
D 

H 
D 
S 
F 

H 
D 
M 
F 

M 
H 

M 
H 
P 

M 
O 
R 
R 

O 
& 
I 

B 
1 

B 
2 

P 
C 

L 
I 

T 
F 

M 
E 
C 

T 
N 
D 

P 
U 
D 

C
B 

S 
D 

S 
T 
C 

Section(s) 

Production                        

Manufacturing 
and processing, 
minor 

4.3.6.B.11              P P     
*
* 

 4.4.6.B.6 



2 

 
Section 4. The Planning Director and/or Town Manager are hereby authorized to renumber, revise 

formatting, correct typographic errors, to verify and correct cross references, indexes and 
diagrams as necessary to codify, publish, and/or accomplish the provisions of this ordinance 
or future amendments as long as doing so does not alter the terms of this ordinance.  

 
 
Section 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. If 

any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or provision of this ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid, such adjudication shall apply only to such section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or 
provision so adjudged and the remainder of the ordinance shall be deemed valid and 
effective. 

 
 
Section 6. The ordinance shall be effective upon enactment on the _____ day of May 2020. 
 
 

Introduced by Council Member ________________________________ 
 
Seconded by Council Member _________________________________ 
 

 
Attest:     TOWN OF APEX 

 
 

_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Donna Hosch, MMC, NCCMC  Jacques K. Gilbert 
Town Clerk     Mayor 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Laurie L. Hohe 
Town Attorney 



 

1 

STAFF REPORT 
Amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance 

May 19, 2020 Town Council Meeting  
 

 
 
Requested by Planning Staff: 
 

1. Amendments to Sec. 2.3.5.C Special Use, Procedures in order to remove the reference to the 
Planning Board in subsection 2.3.5.C.2.d. 

 
2.3.5 Special Use 

… 
 C) Procedures 

… 
2) Town Council Quasi-judicial Hearing Procedures 

… 
d) At the public hearing, the Town Council shall consider the application, 

the relevant support materials, the Staff Report, the recommendation 
of the Planning Board, the testimony and/or evidence submitted by the 
applicant, and any testimony and/or evidence submitted by other 
persons. 

 
 
 
2. Amendments to Sec. 3.2 Zoning Districts Established in order to correct a reference to the number 

of zoning districts and to correct a typographical error. 
 

3.2 Zoning Districts Established 
In order to carry out and implement the purpose and intent of this Ordinance, the following 
thirty-eight (38) 39 zoning districts are hereby established: 
 
… 
 
3.2.9 Overlay Districts 

 

A) Watershed Protection Overlay Districts; and 
B) Flood Damage Prevention Overlay District; and 
C) Small Town Character Overlay District.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 

3. Amendments to Sec. 4.2.2 Use Table in order to remove the reference to Sec. 4.4.6.B.6 in the 
Standards column for the use “Manufacturing and processing, minor”. Supplemental standards do 
not exist for that use.  
 

4.2.2 Use Table  

Use Type 
Definition 

Section 

Zoning Districts 

Residential Business 
Planned 

Development 
Other Standards 

R 
A 

R 
R 

L 
D 

M 
D 

H 
D 
S 
F 

H 
D 
M 
F 

M 
H 

M 
H 
P 

M 
O 
R 
R 

O 
& 
I 

B 
1 

B 
2 

P 
C 

L 
I 

T 
F 

M 
E 
C 

T 
N 
D 

P 
U 
D 

C
B 

S 
D 

S 
T 
C 

Section(s) 

Production                        

Manufacturing 
and processing, 
minor 

4.3.6.B.11              P P     
*
* 

 4.4.6.B.6 

 
 
 

 
PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommends approval of the proposed UDO amendments.  
 
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board heard these amendments at their May 11, 2020 meeting and unanimously 
recommended approval. 
 



PLANNING BOARD REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 
Unified Development Ordinance Amendments 
May 11, 2020 Planning Board Meeting  
 

Planning Board Report to Town Council 

Report Requirements:  
Per NCGS 160A-387, all proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance or zoning map shall have a written 
report provided from the Planning Board to the Town Council within 30 days of referral of the amendment 
to the Planning Board, or the Town Council may proceed in its consideration of the amendment without the 
Planning Board report. Furthermore, in no case is the Town Council bound by the recommendations, if any, 
of the Planning Board. 

Planning Board Recommendation:  

Motion:  

  
  
Introduced by Planning Board member:  

Seconded by Planning Board member:  
  

� Approval of the proposed UDO amendment(s) 
� Approval of the proposed UDO amendment(s) with the following conditions: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
� Denial of the proposed UDO amendment(s)  

 With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “aye” 
 

With ____ Planning Board Member(s) voting “no” 
  

Reasons for dissenting votes: 
  

  
  
  
  

This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the ____ day of ____________ 2020. 

Attest:  
   

Michael Marks, Planning Board Chair  Dianne Khin, Planning Director 

Motion to approve UDO amendments as proposed.

Tina Sherman

Reginald Skinner

7

0

11th May

Michael Marks Digitally signed by Michael Marks 
Date: 2020.05.12 11:45:34 -04'00' Dianne Khin Digitally signed by Dianne Khin 

Date: 2020.05.11 17:53:16 -04'00'

✔



 

 

TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION  
OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

AMENDMENTS TO THE  
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
ORDINANCE (UDO) 
 

Notice is hereby given of a public hearing before the Town Council of the Town of Apex for the purpose of soliciting 
comments relative to the following amendment(s) to the Unified Development Ordinance: 

 
Requested by Planning Staff: 

1. Amendments to Sec. 2.3.5.C Special Use, Procedures in order to remove the reference to the Planning Board 
in subsection 2.3.5.C.2.d. 
 

2. Amendments to Sec. 3.2 Zoning Districts Established in order to correct a reference to the number of zoning 
districts and to correct a typographical error. 
 

3. Amendments to Sec. 4.2.2 Use Table in order to remove the reference to Sec. 4.4.6.B.6 in the Standards 
column for the use “Manufacturing and processing, minor”. Supplemental standards do not exist for that use.  
 

 

Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time:  May 19, 2020   6:00 PM  
 

To Participate in a Remote Meeting: To Participate in an In-Person Meeting (if 
available): 

View the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. 
 
Meeting presentation materials will be posted at 
http://www.apexnc.org/182 the day of the meeting. 
 
Share comments by noon on Monday, May 18, 2020, following 
instructions in the Remote Participation policy. The policy 
includes options to provide comments by email 
(public.hearing@apexnc.org, 350-word limit) or voicemail (919-
372-7300, 3-minute limit). 

Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina 
Council Chambers, 2nd Floor 
 
Share comments during the meeting 
following the Public Hearing Participation 
Policy. 
 

 
 

The UDO can be accessed online at: http://www.apexnc.org/233. 
Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Director of Planning and 
Community Development 

Published Dates: April 28-May 19, 2020 

Special Notice regarding Public Hearing Participation Related to the COVID-19 Pandemic: 
At the time of publication of this notice, it is not known whether the Apex Town Hall will be open for in-
person participation in the public hearings. Please visit https://www.apexnc.org/calendar.aspx prior to the 
public hearing date to determine whether comments will be accepted remotely or in-person. Both methods 
are summarized below. 





 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 

Department(s): Administration 

  

Requested Motion 

Public hearing and possible motion to approve an Order Closing a portion of the right-of-way (ROW), 

located between two Sweetwater Property Owner Association Open Space tracts 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

The purpose for the ROW closing request is to realign the street connection between the Sweetwater 

and Linden subdivisions. The alignment will create a connection between HWY 64 and Olive Chapel 

Road. Staff has reviewed the request. The town will need to retain appropriate utility easements in the 

area and receive a new ROW dedication. Staff has conducted all necessary public hearing notices and 

postings per N.C.G.S. 160a-299 and town policy. 

 

Attachments 

 Owner Request for Street (ROW) Closing 

 Area Map of Request (Exhibit A) 

 Order to Close Right-of-Way 

 



ROW CLOSURE LETTER > CRS-16000 

   2905 Meridian Parkway, Durham, NC 27713 / 919. 361. 5000 creating experiences through experience 

April 2, 2020  
 
Mr. Shawn Purvis 
Town of Apex 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, North Carolina 27502 
 
RE: Linden Subdivision – Hasse Avenue Extension 
 ROW Closure Letter   
 McAdams Project #CRS-16000 
 
Dear Mr. Purvis,  
 
Field Homes on behalf of Crescent Apex, LLC is requesting the closure/abandonment of 0.295 acres of dedicated 
public right of way of Hasse Avenue.  The portion of right of way being referenced is between two Sweetwater 
Property Owner Association Open Space tracts (PIN #0722-42-8669 & #0722-42-1400).  This right of way is most 
recently recorded in Wake County Book of Maps 2017 pg 2550-2552).  The Most of this public right of way is 
unimproved and is needed to be shifted to account for a street realignment with the Sweetwater Subdivision.  
Subsequent to this ROW closure there will be an immediate ROW dedication of a 0.300 AC parcel (net add of 0.005 
acres) that will appropriately align the continuation of Hass Ave between Sweetwater and Linden Subdivisions 
making comprehensive connection between HWY 64 and Olive Chapel Road via Apex Public Street right of way.    A 
draft plat map of this right of way removal is attached for reference.  Please call or email me if you have questions. 
 
 
Sincerely,  
MCADAMS 
 
 
 
Ryan Akers,  
Senior Project Manager, Residential  
 
 
RA/ca 



 

 

 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA     TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 

    

ORDER CLOSING A PORTION OF HASSE AVENUE 
 

 THIS MATTER coming on to be heard before the Town Council for Town of Apex, 

Wake County, North Carolina pursuant to a public hearing held in Apex, North Carolina on the 

19th day of May, 2020.  At said public hearing, the Council found the following facts: 

 

FACTS 

 

1. On April 21, 2020, the Town of Apex adopted a Resolution of Intent to consider 

the closing of a portion of Hasse Avenue. The portion of Hasse Avenue that the Town of Apex 

intends to close is described as follows: 

 

That certain area designated as “RIGHT OF WAY AREA TO BE ABANDONED” 

consisting of 0.071 acres (3,109 square feet) on that certain survey entitled “HASSE AVENUE 

RIGHT OF WAY ABANDONMENT” by The John R. McAdams Company, Inc. and dated 05-

11-2020 (the “Survey”).  A copy of the Survey is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 

   2. This Order shall not be effective until a plat identifying the abandonment and the 

new dedication of right-of-way for the revised location of Hasse Avenue is offered by Crescent 

Apex, LLC and accepted by the Town of Apex official with the authority to sign said plat. 

 

3. Pursuant to the requirements of North Carolina General Statute § 160A-299, the 

Town Council adopted a Resolution declaring its intent to close a portion of Hasse Avenue and 

setting a date, time and place for a public hearing as required by said statute. 

 

 4. Said Resolution and a Notice of Hearing was published once a week for four 

successive weeks prior to the date of hearing in a newspaper published and having general 

circulation in Wake County, North Carolina. 

 

 5. A copy of the Resolution and Notice of Hearing was mailed by certified mail to 

each owner (as shown on the Wake County tax records) of property adjoining Hasse Avenue 

who did not join in or consent to the request to close said street. 



 

 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 6. Notice of the proposed closing and public hearing was prominently posted in at 

least two places along Hasse Avenue. 

 

 7. That the public hearing was held on May 19, 2020 at the Apex Town Hall, Town 

Council Meeting Room. 

 

 8. The Town Council is satisfied that the closing of a portion of Hasse Avenue is not 

contrary to the public interest. 

 

 9. The Town Council is satisfied that the closing of a portion of Hasse Avenue 

would not deprive any individual owning property in the vicinity of reasonable means of ingress 

and egress to his or her property. 

 

 UPON THE foregoing findings of fact, the Town Council for the Town of Apex 

concludes of law that the closing of a portion of Hasse Avenue is not contrary to the public 

interest, that no individual owning property in the vicinity of the street would be deprived of 

reasonable means of ingress and egress to his property, and that same should be closed. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Town Council for the Town of Apex, North Carolina orders: 

 

1. A portion of Hasse Avenue as described in Paragraph 1 of the Facts as the Subject 

Area. 

2. The Town Council orders that said portion of Hasse Avenue shall be and the same 

hereby is closed. 

3. A copy of this Order shall be certified and filed in the office of the Register of 

Deeds of Wake County, North Carolina. 

 

This the 19th day of May 2020. 

 

        

THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE   

 TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 

 

      BY:        

       Jacques K. Gilbert 

Mayor 

  



 

 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

(Corporate Seal)  

      

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Donna B. Hosch, MMC, NCCMC 

Town Clerk 

 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF        [county in which acknowledgement taken] 

 

I,       , a Notary Public of  ______   

County, North Carolina, certify that Donna B. Hosch personally came before me this day and 

acknowledged that she is Town Clerk of the Town of Apex, a North Carolina Municipal 

Corporation, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the corporation, the foregoing 

instrument was signed in its name by its Mayor, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by her 

as its Town Clerk.  Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this the _________ day of  

___________________ 2020. 

 

Notary Public: ________________________________ 

      

My Commission Expires: _______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 



X:\Projects\CRS\CRS-16000\Survey\EXHIBITS\CRS16000-E2.dwg, 5/12/2020 4:14:43 PM, Mersinger, Timothy

EXHIBIT A
HASSE AVENUE

RIGHT OF WAY ABANDONMENT
WHITE OAK TOWNSHIP, WAKE COUNTY, NC

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.
2905 Meridian Parkway

Durham, NC 27713

phone 919. 361. 5000
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

www.mcadamsco.com

PROJECT NO. CRS-16000
FILENAME CRS16000-E2
CHECKED BY JSA
DRAWN BY TAM
SCALE 1"=50'
DATE 05/11/2020

PLAN INFORMATION

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 25 50 100

1 inch = 50 ft.



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Jenna Shouse, Long Range Planner 

Department(s): Planning and Community Development  

  

Requested Motion 

Public hearing and possible motion regarding associated amendments to the Transit Plan Map of the 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan.  

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning and Community Development Department recommends approval. 

 

The Town of Apex Transit Committee unanimously recommended approval at their April 22, 2020 

meeting. 

 

The Planning Board considered the proposed amendments at their May 11, 2020 meeting and 

recommended approval (in a vote of six to one) of the proposed amendments to existing GoTriangle 

Route 305, Future GoCary Route Apex-Cary Express, and Future GoApex Route 1, and denial of the 

proposed amendment to GoTriangle Route 311.  

Item Details 

The purpose of this hearing is to consider the following amendments to the Transit Plan Map of the 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan: 

 

Revise GoTriangle Route 305, GoTriangle Route 311, Future GoCary Holly Springs Express (proposed Apex-

Cary Express), and Future GoApex Route 1. The overall purpose of the proposed amendments is to align 

these four routes to meet in downtown Apex and provide transit connections from Apex to Cary, Holly 

Springs, Raleigh, and the Research Triangle Park. 



 

 

Attachments 

 Staff report 



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendment 

May 19, 2020 Town Council Meeting   
 

 

 

The Transit Plan map of the Comprehensive Transportation Plan represents a network of current and future 
transit services that provide guidance on what is likely to be suitable for long term growth. The Comprehensive 
Transportation Plan does not require a schedule for implementation nor does it set aside funding for 
improvements. Instead, it helps the Town establish long term priorities. The Transit Plan map was last amended in 
October 2019. 
 
In October 2019, Planning and Community Development Department staff presented the Future Holly Springs 
Express, a transit route that would provide service to downtown Cary, downtown Apex, and Holly Springs. When 
the proposed route was presented to elected officials in the Town of Holly Springs; it was determined that the 
Future Holly Springs Express would not provide a reasonable connection from Holly Springs to Raleigh.  
 
Town staff partnered with transit staff at GoTriangle and the Town of Cary to develop route amendments to four 
routes on the Transit Plan Map including Route 305, Route 311, Future Holly Springs Express, and Future Local 
Route 1. The purpose of these amendments is to provide a direct transit connection from Holly Springs to Raleigh, 
while maintaining transit connections from Apex to Cary, Holly Springs, Raleigh, and the Research Triangle Park. 
Additionally, these four routes have been designed to meet in downtown Apex to facilitate transfers between 
routes, serve existing park and ride locations, and serve areas with high propensity to use transit. An overview of 
the four routes, if approved as proposed in the amendments, is shown in Figure 1. A detailed map of the 
amendments can be found online at: https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31445. An explanation of 
the proposed changes to each route follows the map. 
 

 
Figure 1. Proposed Route 305, Route 311, Apex-Cary Express, and GoApex Route 1 

 



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendment 

May 19, 2020 Town Council Meeting   
 

 

 

 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan Amendments: 
 
Planning staff request the following changes to the Transit Plan map in the Comprehensive Transportation Plan: 
 

1. Revise Route 305 to extend through downtown Apex and to Holly Springs. Proposed changes include 
rerouting along US 64, Laura Duncan Road, N Mason Street, E Chatham Street, S Hughes Street, E Williams 
Street, and Apex Peakway. Proposed revisions also include removal of Route 311 (incorrectly labeled on 
the Transit Plan Map as Existing Route 305) along Old Raleigh Road, Center Street, and N Hughes Street.  
 
Route 305 currently provides service between Apex and Raleigh from the Lake Pine Plaza Park-and-Ride on 
Shepherds Vineyard Drive. The proposed changes would extend Route 305 to Holly Springs to replace the 
Apex to Holly Springs segment of the former Future Holly Springs Express. The Apex-Cary Express would 
replace the Apex to Cary segment of the former Future Holly Springs Express. Route 305 would operate 
along Laura Duncan Road instead of Old Raleigh Road as Laura Duncan Road has a higher propensity for 
transit use. A map showing the proposed amendment is below. This map details the proposed Route 305 
and specifies the alignment depending on the time and day.  
 

 

Figure 2. Proposed amendments to Route 305 



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendment 

May 19, 2020 Town Council Meeting   
 

 
 

3 

 

2. Reroute Route 311 (Apex to Research Triangle Park) through downtown Apex along S Hughes Street, E 
Chatham Street, and S Salem Street. Proposed revisions also include removal of Route 311 along E 
Williams Street, east of S Hughes Street; S Mason Street; and E Moore Street.  
 
The proposed Route 311 would allow transfers to a GoApex Route 1 bus stop on S. Salem Street. Under 
the proposed amendments to Routes 311 and 305, Route 311 would no longer provide service to Lake 
Pine Plaza Park-and-Ride on Shepherds Vineyard Drive. Route 305 would continue to serve the Lake 
Pine Plaza Park-and-Ride. Routes 305 and 311 would both serve the Compare Foods Park-and-Ride on S 
Hughes Street. A map showing the proposed amendment is below. 
 

 

Figure 3. Proposed amendments to Route 311 
 

3. Change the Holly Springs Express to the Apex-Cary Express. The proposed Apex-Cary Express is 
designed to replace the Apex to Cary segment of the former Future Holly Springs Express. Route 305 
would replace the Apex to Holly Springs segment of the former Future Holly Springs Express. Proposed 
revisions include removal of the Future Holly Springs Express (proposed Apex-Cary Express) along S 
Hughes Street, south of E Williams Street; James Street; Apex Peakway; and E Williams Street, east of S 
Mason Street. A map showing the proposed amendment is below.  



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendment 

May 19, 2020 Town Council Meeting   
 

 
 

4 

 

 

 
Figure 4. Proposed amendments to Future Holly Springs Express 

 

4. Reroute the Future Local Route 1 (GoApex Route 1) through downtown Apex along N Salem Street, 
Center Street, and Hunter Street and reroute through the Beaver Creek Crossings development. 
Proposed revisions include removal of GoApex Route 1 along Apex Peakway, west of N Salem Street; 
Chatham Street; and N Mason Street, south of Center Street.  
 
The proposed route amendments are divided into three sections: 

1. Reroute through Beaver Creek Crossings. Previous plans for this route included a bus stop on 
Beaver Creek Commons Drive at the intersection with Creekside Landing Drive. A bus stop is 
infeasible at this location due to space constraints and steep grade in this area. The proposed 
amendment is to reroute westbound trips through the Beaver Creek Crossings development to 
provide westbound transit riders with access to Beaver Creek Crossings.  

2. Reroute along N Salem Street and Hunter Street. The proposed amendment would remove 
service along Apex Peakway between N Salem Street and W Williams Street. Route 1 would be 
rerouted along N Salem Street and Hunter Street to W Williams Street. The proposed rerouting 
would remove one proposed bus stop on Apex Peakway that would not be served by a 



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendment 

May 19, 2020 Town Council Meeting   
 

 
 

5 

 

proposed nearby stop. The purpose of this amendment is to provide service to a bus stop on N 
Salem Street that would also be served by the proposed Apex-Cary Express.  

3. Reroute along N Salem Street and Center Street. The proposed amendment would remove 
service along Chatham Street and N Mason Street, south of Center Street, and extend service 
along N Salem Street and Center Street. The previous plans for the route included a stop on S 
Salem Street at the intersection with Chatham Street. This stop would require removal of three 
on-street parking spaces on S Salem Street to make the right turn movement from S Salem 
Street onto W Chatham Street. The proposed rerouting would remove one proposed bus stop 
on E Chatham Street at the intersection with S Hughes Street. Continuing the route north along 
Salem Street provides an opportunity to have a bus stop in the heart of downtown without 
impacts to on-street parking.  
 

 

Figure 5. Proposed amendments to Future Local Route 1 
 
Planning Board Recommendation: 
The Planning Board considered the proposed amendments at their May 11, 2020 meeting and recommended 
approval (in a vote of six to one) of the proposed amendments to existing GoTriangle Route 305, Future GoCary 
Route Apex-Cary Express, and Future GoApex Route 1, and denial of the proposed amendment to GoTriangle 
Route 311. Regarding the proposed amendment to GoTriangle Route 311, the Planning Board expressed 
concern that GoTriangle has not be able to adequately collect public input or share information about the 



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendment 

May 19, 2020 Town Council Meeting   
 

 
 

6 

 

proposed route change at this time due to social distancing requirements and reduced bus service. The 
Planning Board requested additional public engagement prior to making a recommendation regarding changes 
to Route 311. 
 
Based on Planning Board’s recommendation, staff will gather additional information on previous and current 
public engagement as well as future plans for engagement related to the proposed changes to Route 311. This 
information will be presented to Town Council at the May 19, 2020 meeting. 
 
Transit Advisory Committee Recommendation:  
The Town of Apex Transit Advisory Committee has reviewed the proposed route amendments and also 
recommends approval.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Planning and Community Development Department staff recommend approval of the proposed amendments 
to be shown on the Transit Plan Map of the Comprehensive Transportation Plan.  
 
The Senior Traffic Engineer reviewed the proposed route amendments and has no concerns. 
 
 
  
 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

Meeting Date:  May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 

Department(s): Administration 

  

Requested Motion 

Public Hearing to receive citizen input on the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annual Budget including proposed 

economic development expenditures 

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

 

Item Details 

The proposed Budget is summarized as follows: 

 

General Fund  $71,936,100  

Electric Fund  $44,067,300  

Water/Sewer Fund   $22,786,800  

Other Funds  $11,713,800  

TOTAL $150,504,000  

 

The Proposed Budget includes various rate adjustments to solid waste fees, electric and sewer rates. 

 

Included in the Annual Budget will be information regarding the appropriation of funds for economic 

development purposes designed to increase employment opportunities and add value to the tax base 

for the Town of Apex through industry recruitment, retention, and other support activities. Pursuant to 

NCGS 158-7.1, notice is hereby given that said information will be a part of the Annual Budget Hearing of 

the Apex Town Council for the purpose of soliciting comments relative to the following monetary 

appropriations for economic development purposes: 



 

 

Economic Development Personnel Salaries, Expenses and 

Benefits:  
$377,200 

Operations, Training, Supplies and Equipment:   $95,100 

Professional Services - Potential site development:  $38,500 

Co-Working Space (lease and utility charges): $25,800 

Think Apex – Initiative to promote local spending and 

awareness:   
$2,500 

Cash Corporate Site Property Purchase (CIP)* $750,000 

TOTAL $1,289,100 

 

 

Attachments 

 None 



 

 

         |  |  cover sheet 

                                                             f o r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  b y  t h e  A p e x  T o w n  C o u n c i l  

 
 

Item Type: OLD BUSINESS 

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 

 

_____________  Item Details  ____________________________________________ 

 

Presenter(s): Shawn Purvis, Assistant Town Manager 

Department(s): Administration 

  

Requested Motion 

Receive information regarding Executive Order 124 and the Town’s suspension of utility late fees and 

disconnects, including the Town’s proposed payment plan agreement.  

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

Item Details 

On March 17, Town Council approved suspending disconnection of utility services as well as all late fees 

and penalties that would normally be incurred until June 5. Executive Order 124 from the Governor 

enacted similar provisions from March 31 through June 1. The attached information includes the Town’s 

proposed payment plan agreement per EO124 and data illustrating the effects of the 

pandemic/recession on the ability of customers to pay and the potential financial implications for the 

town.  

 

Attachments 

 Utility Payment Plan Agreement 

 Staff memo (will be distributed at Council Meeting) 

 Executive Order 124 



 

Town of Apex 

Payment Plan for Utility Services Mandated by Executive Order 124 

 

North Carolina Governor’s Executive Order 124 (EO 124) requires residential water, wastewater, 

electric, and natural gas service providers to suspend disconnections of residential service(s) for 

nonpayment through June 1, 2020, and suspend assessment of all fees, charges, interest, and 

penalties for late payments of monthly utility charges incurred from March 31, 2020, through June 1, 

2020.  

The Town of Apex approved the suspension of penalties and services fees beyond what is required in 

the EO 124.  The Town will not charge delinquent fees from March 18, 2020, through June 5, 2020.  

The Town’s typical practice is to charge a one-percent late penalty on utility accounts with an unpaid 

bill after the due date and to assess a $25.00 service fee to utility accounts with an unpaid balance as 

of the disconnection date as specified on the bill and on the final notice. 

Executive Order 124 does not extinguish or waive account balances. Customers remain legally 

responsible to pay all amounts due on their account. If a customer has charges that were due prior to 

March 18, 2020, and remain unpaid on June 5, 2020, their services may be subject to immediate 

disconnection.   

After June 5 2020, the Town of Apex will resume normal disconnection and late fee policies. Customers 

will, however, have until December 1, 2020, to pay any delinquencies incurred from March 18, 2020 

through June 5, 2020. 

Recognizing the financial hardship some customers now face, and in compliance with EO 124, the 

Town of Apex is offering the following payment plan agreement to customers who are unable to pay 

the bills that became due before June 5, 2020.   

If you wish to set up a payment plan for the bills that became due prior to June 5, 2020 please 

complete the form below. You will receive a confirmation email to let you know that your payment plan 

agreement has been received. If you have any questions please contact Customer Service at 919-362-

8676, (select option 2).         

Payment Plan Terms 

To participate in the Town of Apex’s Payment Plan Agreement, the undersigned agrees to pay a 

minimum of one sixth (1/6th) of the account balance owed as of 5/31/2020.  After submitting your 

Payment Plan Agreement you will receive an email within 1 -2 business days informing you of your 

monthly payment amount due. 

Payment methods include:  

 Telephone 919-362-8676, (select option 1) 

 Drop box in the parking lot of Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street  

 Town of Apex website https://www.apexnc.org/239/Utility-Account-Access-Payment 

 Payment counter located in Town Hall at 73 Hunter Street, Monday – Friday, 8:00 am to 5:00 

pm 



 

 

The undersigned acknowledges that this Payment Plan Agreement does not extinguish or waive their 

account balance. The undersigned remains legally responsible to pay the account balance in full. After 

June 5, 2020, the Town of Apex will resume its normal practices of applying late penalties to any new 

charges not paid on time on or after that date. The Town will also resume its normal policy of 

disconnecting services if charges incurred after June 5, 2020, are not paid on time or if the minimum 

payment plan amounts under the terms of this agreement are not paid on time. 

The undersigned acknowledges that failure to make the minimum payment on the first business day of 

each month will result in the utility services for this account to be subject to disconnection.  

I hereby acknowledge and agree to the terms of this payment plan. 

 

 

___________________________________     

Account Holder’s Signature                                 Date 

 




















	Top
	PR1 Proclamation - AAPI Heritage Month
	CS AAPI Proclamation
	AAPI PROCLAMATION

	CN1 Council Meeting Minutes
	CN - Minutes
	2020.04.27 Special Meeting
	2020.04.23 Budget Workshop
	2020.05.05 Meeting

	CN2 Sell-back of Cemetery Plots
	CN Sell-back of cemetery plots - Dalton

	CN3 Jordan Oil Swap
	Agenda Item Cover Sheet Jordan Oil swap
	Agreement Jordan Oil land swap 04152020 CLEAN
	Recom Map TOA - Jordan Oil Exhibit A
	Jordan Oil Proposed Fence Line - re Land Swap 2020.02.05 Exhibit B
	Jordan Oil Generator Relocation 090319-PRICING SET Exhibit C

	CN4 March UDO Amendments-Statement
	Cover March UDO Amendments-Statement (1)
	March UDO Amendments Statement-various

	CN5 No Parking - Great Lawn & Sunflower Rd
	01 CN - Great Lawn Rd &amp; Sunflower Rd - Ord 20-164(37)
	02 CN - Ord Amend 20-164(37)
	03 CN - Map Ord 20-164(37)

	CN6 Repeal Remote Participation
	CN Repeal Remote Participation Policy
	Remote Participation Policy

	CN7 Special Event - Farmers Market
	CN - Amendment of Special Event Permit for Apex Farmers Market
	Drive thru Farmers Market

	CN8 Transit Layover Location
	01 Cover_Transit Layover_On-Street Parking2 (1)
	02 GoApex Bus Layover

	PH1 Annexation #688 1800 N Salem, LLC
	AnnexPHCover688
	Annex Ordinance 688_2020
	Petition688_Legal_Maps

	PH2 Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map amendment
	01 Cover_BikePed
	02_PH_TC Staff Report_BikePed Amdmnt

	PH3 May UDO Amendments
	Cover May UDO Amendments PH
	Ordinance-May UDO amendments-various
	TC Staff Report May UDO Amendments-various

	PH4 ROW Closing - Hasse Avenue
	Cover Sheet Hasse Ave ROW Closing
	Hasse Ave ROW Closure Letter
	Order Closing Portion of Hasse Avenue
	Hasse Ave ROW Closure Exhibit A

	PH5 Transit Plan Map Amendments
	01 Cover_Transit Amendments
	02 PH_TC_Staff Report_Transit Plan Amdmt

	PH6 Budget Public Hearing
	Cover Sheet Budget Public Hearing

	OB1 Payment Plan Agreement
	Cover Sheet Utility Billing
	1_Town of Apex EO 124 Payment Plan Agreement_FINAL DRAFT(legal comm)
	2_EO124-Utilities-Evictions-Financial-Services-1

	Bottom

